

Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 2: Leadership Consecration-

By Dawn M. Flores

Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 2: Leadership Consecration-

By
Dawn M. Flores

© 2020 Dawn M. Flores. First Edition

Synergy of the Ages NW

Glory Fire Army International Ministries

Scriptures:

World English Bible (WEB)

by Public Domain. The name "World English Bible" is trademarked.

Tree of Life (TLV) Translation of the Bible

referenced in the Introduction only.

Copyright © 2015 by The Messianic Jewish Family Bible Society.

Dedication

To You, my Lord and Savior, Yeshua the Messiah/Jesus Christ, Who KNOWS how to speak to each Heart and DRAW THEM INTO YOUR QUIET PLACE! THANK YOU!

To my friends, near and far, who encourage me daily. Thank you!

Introduction

This Book was inspired by the Great Commission and the Lord's desire for His Servants to RAISE UP LEADERS HOLY AND SEPARATED UNTO HIMSELF! We cannot be effective in His Call until our Hearts are Positioned to HEAR Him and KNOW His Will for the People.

Matthew 28:18-20

¹⁸ And *Yeshua* came up to them and spoke to them, saying, "All authority in heaven and on earth has been given to Me. ¹⁹ Go therefore and make disciples of all nations, immersing them in the name of the Father and the Son and the *Ruach ha-Kodesh*, ²⁰ teaching them to observe all I have commanded you.

And remember! I am with you always, even to the end of the age."

2 Corinthians 6:16-19

¹⁶ What agreement does God's Temple have with idols? For we are the temple of the living God—just as God said,

"I will dwell in them and walk among them; and I will be their God, and they shall be My people.

17 Therefore, come out from among them, and be separate, says Adonai.

Touch no unclean thing.

Then I will take you in.

18 I will be a father to you, and you shall be My sons and daughters, says Adonai-Tzva'ot."

Consecration and Humility are key qualities in the Believer's Life. From the Merriam-Webster Dictionary we find the following definitions:

Consecration: (noun)

the state of being consecrated

Consecrate:

Consecrate means to make holy or to dedicate to a higher purpose.

The *secr* part of *consecrate* comes from the Latin *sacer* "sacred." Remember that something consecrated is dedicated to God and thus

sacred. (https://www.vocabulary.com/dictionary/consecrate)

Humility (noun):

:freedom from pride or arrogance : the quality or state of being humble accepted the honor with <a href="https://humble.ncepted.n

Tree of Life Version (TLV)

Tree of Life (TLV) Translation of the Bible. Copyright © 2015 by The Messianic Jewish Family Bible Society.

Contents

W	alk in Humility	1
4	Clothe Yourself in Humility!	2
4	Humility & Obedience Towards God is Becoming Evident!	5
4	God is Lifting Up the Humble of Heart!	8
4	Be Sober, Stay Alert, & Humble Yourself Under the Hand of God — He is Lifting You Up!	11
4	The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!	14
Со	nsecrate Yourself	18
4	Consecrate Yourselves!	19
4	You Must Choose to Sanctify Yourself!	23
4	You are Anointed to Call the People Back to the Lord God Almighty!	27
4	You Have a Holy Calling!	30
4	You are Chosen of God!	34
Po	sition Yourself	37
4	The Lord Guards the Steps of His Called-Out Ones!	38
4	God is Looking for Those Who Worship Him in Spirit & Truth!	43
4	My Food is to do the Will of the Father!	47
4	I am Growing in Discernment!	51
4	I Am Committed — Living Fully Immersed in Christ!	55
Pro	ay Without Ceasing	58
4	The Lord God Almighty Hears You!	59
4	Prayer Positions You to Hear God!	62
4	Pray During the Night Watch!	66
4	We Bind the Principalities Over Our Regions!	70
Yo	u are Bold	74
4	Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!	75
4	You Will Not be Dissuaded by Others' Unbelief!	79
4	By Acts of Courage Your Faith is Seen!	82

Walk in Humility

Clothe Yourself in Humility!

1 Peter 5:1-11; James 4:7-10; Zephaniah 2:1-3; Psalm 10:12-18 (WEB)

1 Peter 5:1-11

Therefore I exhort the elders among you, as a fellow elder, and a witness of the sufferings of Christ, and who will also share in the glory that will be revealed: ² Shepherd the flock of God which is among you, exercising the oversight, not under compulsion, but voluntarily, not for dishonest gain, but willingly; ³ not as lording it over those entrusted to you, but making yourselves examples to the flock. ⁴ When the chief Shepherd is revealed, you will receive the crown of glory that doesn't fade away.

⁵ Likewise, you younger ones, be subject to the elder. Yes, all of you clothe yourselves with humility, to subject yourselves to one another; for "God resists the proud, but gives grace to the humble." Proverbs 3:34 ⁶ Humble yourselves therefore under the mighty hand of God, that he may exalt you in due time, ⁷ casting all your worries on him, because he cares for you.

⁸ Be sober and self-controlled. Be watchful. Your adversary, the devil, walks around like a roaring lion, seeking whom he may devour. ⁹ Withstand him steadfast in your faith, knowing that your brothers who are in the world are undergoing the same sufferings. ¹⁰ But may the God of all grace, who called you to his eternal glory by Christ Jesus, after you have suffered a little while, perfect, establish, strengthen, and settle you. ¹¹ To him be the glory and the power forever and ever. Amen.

James 4:7-10

⁷ Be subject therefore to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you. ⁸ Draw near to God, and he will draw near to you. Cleanse your hands, you sinners. Purify your hearts, you double-minded. ⁹ Lament, mourn, and weep. Let your laughter be turned to mourning, and your joy to gloom. ¹⁰ Humble yourselves in the sight of the Lord, and he will exalt you.

Zephaniah 2:1-3

Gather yourselves together, yes, gather together, you nation that has no shame, ² before the appointed time when the day passes as the chaff, before the fierce anger of Yahweh comes on you, before the day of Yahweh's anger comes on you. ³ Seek Yahweh, all you humble of the land, who have kept his ordinances. Seek righteousness. Seek humility. It may be that you will be hidden in the day of Yahweh's anger.

Psalm 10:12-18

¹² Arise, Yahweh!

God, lift up your hand!

Don't forget the helpless.

¹³ Why does the wicked person condemn God, and say in his heart, "God won't call me into account?"

¹⁴ But you do see trouble and grief.

You consider it to take it into your hand.

You help the victim and the fatherless.

¹⁵ Break the arm of the wicked.

As for the evil man, seek out his wickedness until you find none.

¹⁶ Yahweh is King forever and ever!

The nations will perish out of his land.

¹⁷ Yahweh, you have heard the desire of the humble.

You will prepare their heart.

You will cause your ear to hear,

to judge the fatherless and the oppressed, that man who is of the earth may terrify no more.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare to the Congregation Leaders SHEPHERD the FLOCK of God/Elohim that is in your care, EXERCISING OVERSIGHT not out of constraint, but WILLINGLY, as God/Elohim wants; and not out of desire for dishonest gain, but with ENTHUSIASM. Then, when the Chief Shepherd APPEARS, you will receive GLORY as your Unfading Crown!
- ➤ I decree and declare you who are less experienced are to SUBMIT to your Leaders. Further ALL of you should CLOTHE yourselves in HUMILITY toward one another, because God opposes the arrogant, but to the HUMBLE HE GIVES GRACE!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are HUMBLING yourselves UNDER the Mighty Hand of God/Elohim, so that AT THE RIGHT TIME He may LIFT you up. Stay SOBER, stay ALERT! Your enemy, the Adversary, stalks about like a roaring lion looking for someone to devour. STAND against him, FIRM in your TRUST, knowing that your brothers throughout the World are going through the same kinds of suffering.
- ➤ I declare you will have to SUFFER only a little while; after that God/Elohim, who is FULL of GRACE, the One Who CALLED you to His Eternal Glory in UNION with Christ/Messiah, will Himself RESTORE, ESTABLISH and STRENGTHEN you and make you FIRM. To Him be the POWER FOREVER and EVER, AMEN!
- I decree and declare to you who DESIRE GOD/ELOHIM, SUBMIT to Him; also TAKE a STAND against the Adversary, and he will FLEE from you. COME CLOSE to GOD/ELOHIM, and He will COME CLOSE to you. Clean your hands, sinners, and PURIFY your hearts, you double-minded people! Humble yourselves before the Lord/Adonai, and He will LIFT you up!
- ➤ I decree and declare you will gather yourselves together BEFORE the Day of the Lord comes; before the Lord's/Adonai's FIERCE ANGER comes on you, before the Day of the Lord's/Adonai's Anger comes on you. SEEK the LORD/ADONAI, all you HUMBLE in the Land, you who EXERCISE HIS JUSTICE; SEEK RIGHTEOUSNESS, SEEK HUMILITY that you might be HIDDEN on the Day of the Lord's/Adonai's ANGER.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai DOES NOT FORGET the HUMBLE! Why does the wicked despise God and say in his heart, "It won't be held against me"? The Lord SEES; for He LOOKS at mischief and grief, so that He can take the matter in Hand. The Helpless COMMIT themselves to the Lord/Adonai; He HELPS the Fatherless.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is a KING FOREVER and EVER. The Nations have vanished from His Land. The Lord has HEARD what the HUMBLE want; He ENCOURAGES them and LISTENS to them, to give JUSTICE to the Fatherless and Oppressed.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 19, 2019]

Humility & Obedience Towards God is Becoming Evident!

2 Chronicles 6:12-21; Romans 16:25-27; Zephaniah 2:1-3; Galatians 5:22-26; James 3:13-18 (WEB)

2 Chronicles 6:12-21

¹²He stood before Yahweh's altar in the presence of all the assembly of Israel, and spread out his hands ¹³ (for Solomon had made a bronze platform, five cubits ^[a] long, and five cubits wide, and three cubits high, and had set it in the middle of the court; and he stood on it, and knelt down on his knees before all the assembly of Israel, and spread out his hands toward heaven) ¹⁴ and he said, "Yahweh, the God of Israel, there is no God like you in heaven or on earth; you who keep covenant and loving kindness with your servants who walk before you with all their heart; ¹⁵ who have kept with your servant David my father that which you promised him. Yes, you spoke with your mouth, and have fulfilled it with your hand, as it is today.

¹⁶ "Now therefore, Yahweh, the God of Israel, keep with your servant David my father that which you have promised him, saying, 'There shall not fail you a man in my sight to sit on the throne of Israel, if only your children take heed to their way, to walk in my law as you have walked before me.' ¹⁷ Now therefore, Yahweh, the God of Israel, let your word be verified, which you spoke to your servant David.

¹⁸ "But will God indeed dwell with men on the earth? Behold, heaven and the heaven of heavens can't contain you; how much less this house which I have built! ¹⁹ Yet have respect for the prayer of your servant, and to his supplication, Yahweh my God, to listen to the cry and to the prayer which your servant prays before you; ²⁰ that your eyes may be open toward this house day and night, even toward the place where you have said that you would put your name; to listen to the prayer which your servant will pray toward this place. ²¹ Listen to the petitions of your servant, and of your people Israel, when they pray toward this place. Yes, hear from your dwelling place, even from heaven; and when you hear, forgive.

Romans 14:24-26

²⁴ Now to him who is able to establish you according to my Good News and the preaching of Jesus Christ, according to the revelation of the mystery which has been kept secret through long ages, ²⁵ but now is revealed, and by the Scriptures of the prophets, according to the commandment of the eternal God, is made known for obedience of faith to all the nations; ²⁶ to the only wise God, through Jesus Christ, to whom be the glory forever! Amen.

[Footnotes: <u>16:25</u> TR places Romans 14:24-26 at the end of Romans instead of at the end of chapter 14, and numbers these verses 16:25-27.]

Zephaniah 2:1-3

Gather yourselves together, yes, gather together, you nation that has no shame, ² before the appointed time when the day passes as the chaff, before the fierce anger of Yahweh comes on you, before the day of Yahweh's anger comes on you. ³ Seek Yahweh, all you humble of the land, who have kept his ordinances. Seek righteousness. Seek humility. It may be that you will be hidden in the day of Yahweh's anger.

Galatians 5:22-26

²² But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faith, ²³ gentleness, and self-

control. Against such things there is no law. ²⁴ Those who belong to Christ have crucified the flesh with its passions and lusts.

²⁵ If we live by the Spirit, let's also walk by the Spirit. ²⁶ Let's not become conceited, provoking one another, and envying one another.

James 3:13-18

¹³ Who is wise and understanding among you? Let him show by his good conduct that his deeds are done in gentleness of wisdom. ¹⁴ But if you have bitter jealousy and selfish ambition in your heart, don't boast and don't lie against the truth. ¹⁵ This wisdom is not that which comes down from above, but is earthly, sensual, and demonic. ¹⁶ For where jealousy and selfish ambition are, there is confusion and every evil deed. ¹⁷ But the wisdom that is from above is first pure, then peaceful, gentle, reasonable, full of mercy and good fruits, without partiality, and without hypocrisy. ¹⁸ Now the fruit of righteousness is sown in peace by those who make peace.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare that our President and Leaders are being STRENGTHENED in the POWER of the Lord/Adonai. Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is filling them with WISDOM and HUMILITY of God Almighty/El Shaddai. They are rising above the popular decisions of the World and standing STRONG for YOUR TRUTH, Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare our Leaders will HUMBLE themselves before God/Elohim and man, kneeling and prostrating themselves, with their hands raised toward heaven, saying: Lord God/Adonai Elohim, there is NO GOD LIKE YOU in Heaven or on Earth. You KEEP COVENANT with your Servants and show them GRACE, PROVIDED they live in YOUR PRESENCE with all their Heart!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim keeps His PROMISES, if only the People are CAREFUL about what they do, so that they LIVE by His Word, and dwell in His Presence. He pays attention to the PRAYERS of His People, as they call out to Him with HUMBLE Hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim STRENGTHENS you, according to the Good News, in HARMONY with the revelation of the SECRET TRUTH which is the proclamation of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah which was kept HIDDEN in silence for ages and ages but is MANIFESTED NOW through the Prophetic Writings.
- ➤ I decree and declare the TRUTH of the Good News is communicated to all Nations to PROMOTE in them TRUST GROUNDED OBEDIENCE to the only wise God, through Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah; to Him be the GLORY FOREVER and EVER, Amen!
- ➤ I decree and declare to those who have no SHAME, GATHER TOGETHER and LISTEN, before the day comes when one passes like chaff; before the Lord's/Adonai's FIERCE ANGER comes upon you. SEEK the Lord/Adonai, all you HUMBLE in the Land, you who exercise His JUSTICE; SEEK RIGHTEOUSNESS, SEEK HUMILITY you might be hidden on the day of the Lord's/Adonai's Anger!

- ➤ I decree and declare you who BELONG to Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua have put your old nature to death on the cross along with its passions and desires. You are NEW CREATIONS bearing the FRUIT of the Spirit/Ruach: love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, HUMILITY, self-control. Nothing in God's Word is against such things.
- ➤ I decree and declare you who are WISE and UNDERSTANDING will demonstrate it by your good way of life, by actions done in the HUMILITY that grows out of WISDOM. Those who harbor in their hearts bitter jealousy and selfish ambition are not to attack the TRUTH with lies; for those who do have a wisdom that is not from above, on the contrary, it is Worldly, unspiritual, demonic!
- ➤ I decree and declare the WISDOM from above is, first of all, PURE, then PEACEFUL, KIND, open to reason, full of MERCY and good fruits, without partiality and without hypocrisy. And Peacemakers who sow seed in PEACE raise a Harvest of RIGHTEOUSNESS.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 4, 2019]

God is Lifting Up the Humble of Heart!

Psalm 75:6-10; James 4:10; Luke 14:8-11; 1 Peter 5:1-6; John 15:1-17 (WEB)

Psalm 75:6-10

⁶ For neither from the east, nor from the west, nor yet from the south, comes exaltation.

⁷ But God is the judge.

He puts down one, and lifts up another.

⁸ For in Yahweh's hand there is a cup, full of foaming wine mixed with spices.

He pours it out.

Indeed the wicked of the earth drink and drink it to its very dregs.

I will sing praises to the God of Jacob.

¹⁰ I will cut off all the horns of the wicked, but the horns of the righteous shall be lifted up.

James 4:10

¹⁰ Humble yourselves in the sight of the Lord, and he will exalt you.

Luke 14:8-11

⁸ "When you are invited by anyone to a wedding feast, don't sit in the best seat, since perhaps someone more honorable than you might be invited by him, ⁹ and he who invited both of you would come and tell you, 'Make room for this person.' Then you would begin, with shame, to take the lowest place. ¹⁰ But when you are invited, go and sit in the lowest place, so that when he who invited you comes, he may tell you, 'Friend, move up higher.' Then you will be honored in the presence of all who sit at the table with you. ¹¹ For everyone who exalts himself will be humbled, and whoever humbles himself will be exalted."

1 Peter 5:1-6

Therefore I exhort the elders among you, as a fellow elder, and a witness of the sufferings of Christ, and who will also share in the glory that will be revealed: ² Shepherd the flock of God which is among you, exercising the oversight, not under compulsion, but voluntarily, not for dishonest gain, but willingly; ³ not as lording it over those entrusted to you, but making yourselves examples to the flock. ⁴ When the chief Shepherd is revealed, you will receive the crown of glory that doesn't fade away.

⁵ Likewise, you younger ones, be subject to the elder. Yes, all of you clothe yourselves with humility, to subject yourselves to one another; for "God resists the proud, but gives grace to the humble." Proverbs 3:34 ⁶ Humble yourselves therefore under the mighty hand of God, that he may exalt you in due time,

John 15:1-17

"I am the true vine, and my Father is the farmer. ² Every branch in me that doesn't bear fruit, he takes away. Every branch that bears fruit, he prunes, that it may bear more fruit. ³ You are already pruned clean because of the word which I have spoken to you. ⁴ Remain in me, and I in you. As the branch can't bear fruit by itself unless it remains in the vine, so neither can you, unless you remain in me. ⁵ I am the vine. You are the branches. He who remains in me and I in him bears much fruit, for apart from me you

⁹ But I will declare this forever:

can do nothing. ⁶ If a man doesn't remain in me, he is thrown out as a branch and is withered; and they gather them, throw them into the fire, and they are burned. ⁷ If you remain in me, and my words remain in you, you will ask whatever you desire, and it will be done for you.

⁸ "In this my Father is glorified, that you bear much fruit; and so you will be my disciples. ⁹ Even as the Father has loved me, I also have loved you. Remain in my love. ¹⁰ If you keep my commandments, you will remain in my love; even as I have kept my Father's commandments, and remain in his love. ¹¹ I have spoken these things to you, that my joy may remain in you, and that your joy may be made full.

¹² "This is my commandment, that you love one another, even as I have loved you. ¹³ Greater love has no one than this, that someone lay down his life for his friends. ¹⁴ You are my friends, if you do whatever I command you. ¹⁵ No longer do I call you servants, for the servant doesn't know what his lord does. But I have called you friends, for everything that I heard from my Father, I have made known to you. ¹⁶ You didn't choose me, but I chose you and appointed you, that you should go and bear fruit, and that your fruit should remain; that whatever you will ask of the Father in my name, he may give it to you.

¹⁷ "I command these things to you, that you may love one another.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare God is the JUDGE: He lowers one and LIFTS UP ANOTHER. Exaltation does not come from the East or the West, nor even from the Desert. It is the God of Jacob/Elohei Ya'akov Who I will DECLARE FOREVER, I will SING PRAISE to Him alone! The horns of the RIGHTEOUS will be lifted up!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai KNOWS my heart's position. I SEEK the Lord/Adonai and His COMPANIONSHIP daily; my DESIRE is only to sit at His feet. He has said in His Word, "HUMBLE yourself in My sight, and I will LIFT YOU UP!" Blessed are all who WALK in YOUR WILL, Lord/Adonai!
- I decree and declare, when I'm invited to a celebration, I will not take the seat of HONOR, for there may be someone more highly esteemed that has been invited. I will not be presumptuous, but rather I will take LOWEST SEAT, so that when the one who invited me comes, he may ask me to MOVE UP HIGHER. In this way, in God's timing, I may be HONORED in the presence of all those who are dining with me.
- I decree and declare Everyone who exalts himself will be humbled, and the one who HUMBLES HIMSELF will be EXALTED!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as an Elder, You will SHEPHERD God's Flock. You WILLINGLY and EAGERLY Watch over it, not under compulsion. You have no thoughts of dishonest gain. You will not lord it over those apportioned to you but BECOME EXAMPLES to the Flock entrusted to you.
- ➤ I decree and declare when the Chief Shepherd appears you will RECEIVE the UNFADING CROWN of GLORY. The younger should submit yourselves to the Elders. And ALL of you, CLOTHE

yourselves with HUMILITY toward one another, for God opposes the proud, but GIVES GRACE to the HUMBLE!

- I decree and declare you will HUMBLE yourselves under the Mighty Hand of God, so that He may LIFT YOU UP at the appropriate time!
- ➤ I decree and declare I am DILIGENT to remain in the Word and to cultivate His TRUTH within me. For it is the BRANCHES that bear FRUIT that He trims so that it will bear MORE FRUIT. I am already CLEAN because of the Word He has Spoken to me. I will ABIDE in Him and He will ABIDE in me! As I ABIDE in Him I will continue to BEAR much FRUIT!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as you ABIDE in Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, you can ASK whatever we wish, and it will be done for you. This is how the Father is GLORIFIED, that you bear much fruit and so PROVE to be Christ's/Messiah's Disciples!
- ➤ I decree and declare I ABIDE in the LOVE of Christ/Messiah! I will KEEP His Commandments, so that I can ABIDE in His LOVE. Just as He kept His Father's Commandments and abided in His Love. My JOY is FULL because He has spoken these truths to us.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 15, 2019]

Be Sober, Stay Alert, & Humble Yourself Under the Hand of God — He is Lifting You Up!

1 Peter 5:6-11; Mark 13:5-11; Acts 20:28-31; Colossians 4:2-6; James 4:6-12 (WEB)

1 Peter 5:6-11

⁶ Humble yourselves therefore under the mighty hand of God, that he may exalt you in due time, ⁷ casting all your worries on him, because he cares for you.

⁸ Be sober and self-controlled. Be watchful. Your adversary, the devil, walks around like a roaring lion, seeking whom he may devour. ⁹ Withstand him steadfast in your faith, knowing that your brothers who are in the world are undergoing the same sufferings. ¹⁰ But may the God of all grace, who called you to his eternal glory by Christ Jesus, after you have suffered a little while, perfect, establish, strengthen, and settle you. ¹¹ To him be the glory and the power forever and ever. Amen.

Mark 13:5-11

⁵ Jesus, answering, began to tell them, "Be careful that no one leads you astray. ⁶ For many will come in my name, saying, 'I am he!' and will lead many astray.

⁷ "When you hear of wars and rumors of wars, don't be troubled. For those must happen, but the end is not yet. ⁸ For nation will rise against nation, and kingdom against kingdom. There will be earthquakes in various places. There will be famines and troubles. These things are the beginning of birth pains. ⁹ But watch yourselves, for they will deliver you up to councils. You will be beaten in synagogues. You will stand before rulers and kings for my sake, for a testimony to them. ¹⁰ The Good News must first be preached to all the nations. ¹¹ When they lead you away and deliver you up, don't be anxious beforehand, or premeditate what you will say, but say whatever will be given you in that hour. For it is not you who speak, but the Holy Spirit.

Acts 20:28-31

²⁸ Take heed, therefore, to yourselves, and to all the flock, in which the Holy Spirit has made you overseers, to shepherd the assembly of the Lord and [a] God which he purchased with his own blood. ²⁹ For I know that after my departure, vicious wolves will enter in among you, not sparing the flock. ³⁰ Men will arise from among your own selves, speaking perverse things, to draw away the disciples after them. ³¹ Therefore watch, remembering that for a period of three years I didn't cease to admonish everyone night and day with tears.

Colossians 4:2-6

² Continue steadfastly in prayer, watching in it with thanksgiving, ³ praying together for us also, that God may open to us a door for the word, to speak the mystery of Christ, for which I am also in bonds, ⁴ that I may reveal it as I ought to speak. ⁵ Walk in wisdom toward those who are outside, redeeming the time. ⁶ Let your speech always be with grace, seasoned with salt, that you may know how you ought to answer each one.

James 4:6-12

⁶ But he gives more grace. Therefore it says, "God resists the proud, but gives grace to the humble." Proverbs 3:34 ⁷ Be subject therefore to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you. Boraw near to God, and he will draw near to you. Cleanse your hands, you sinners. Purify your hearts, you

double-minded. ⁹ Lament, mourn, and weep. Let your laughter be turned to mourning, and your joy to gloom. ¹⁰ Humble yourselves in the sight of the Lord, and he will exalt you.

¹¹ Don't speak against one another, brothers. He who speaks against a brother and judges his brother, speaks against the law and judges the law. But if you judge the law, you are not a doer of the law, but a judge. ¹² Only one is the lawgiver, who is able to save and to destroy. But who are you to judge another?

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- We decree and declare that YOU, Servants of the Most High God, HUMBLE yourselves under His Hand, so that AT THE RIGHT TIME He will LIFT you UP! You are throwing any anxiety upon Him, because YOU KNOW He CARES for you.
- ➤ We decree and declare you will STAY SOBER and ALERT for your enemy, the adversary, stalks about like a roaring lion looking for someone to devour. YOU will STAND against him, FIRM in your TRUST, KNOWING that your brothers and sisters throughout the world are going through the same kinds of suffering.
- ➤ We decree and declare you will have to suffer only a LITTLE WHILE, after that, God, who is full of grace WILL Himself RESTORE, ESTABLISH and STRENGTHEN you and make you FIRM. To Him be the POWER forever and ever. Amen!
- ➤ We decree the People of the Lord will not be fooled. You KNOW the Lord's VOICE, you know His WORDS. The World is in turmoil, there are earthquakes and famines; this is but the beginning of the birth pains.
- We decree and declare STRENGTH and WISDOM for the Servants of God; watch yourselves! Many will be handed over to the authorities, some will be beaten because of their FAITH in Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah. Many will be brought before governors and kings as WITNESSES of the Good News. Know that Holy Spirit will give them the words to speak, when the time comes.
- We decree and declare you are ALERT and CAUTIOUS, both for yourselves and for those who look to you as their leaders. Know that savage wolves will come among you, they are seeking to destroy the flock. Be aware of perversions of the TRUTH. Stay ALERT! The Lord is placing His Spirit as a guard on your mind and thoughts. Remain in His Presence, DESIRE Him alone.
- We declare the Lord cares for you; His message of LOVE and KINDNESS strengthens you, it builds you up and gives you an inheritance among all those who have been set apart for God!
- ➤ We decree and declare you are PERSISTING in PRAYER, staying ALERT in it and being THANKFUL. Doors are OPENING for you to PROCLAIM the MESSAGE about the SECRET of Christ/Messiah. The message you speak will be CLEAR and understood by the masses.
- ➤ We decree and declare God is POURING out His GRACE upon you. You are walking in HUMILITY; as you come close to the Lord, He will come close to you. Humble yourselves before the Lord, and He will LIFT you UP!

- We decree and declare you are ENCOURAGING one another, BUILDING each other up; you do not speak against one another. There is but One Giver of the Law; He is also the Judge, with power to deliver and destroy.
- We declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, April 2, 2018]

The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!

Deuteronomy 26:16-19; 28:1-14; Psalm 18:46-50; 103:3-18

Deuteronomy 26:16-19

¹⁶Today Yahweh your God commands you to do these statutes and ordinances. You shall therefore keep and do them with all your heart and with all your soul. ¹⁷You have declared today that Yahweh is your God, and that you would walk in his ways, keep his statutes, his commandments, and his ordinances, and listen to his voice. ¹⁸Yahweh has declared today that you are a people for his own possession, as he has promised you, and that you should keep all his commandments. ¹⁹He will make you high above all nations that he has made, in praise, in name, and in honor; and that you may be a holy people to Yahweh your God, as he has spoken.

Deuteronomy 28:1-14

It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to Yahweh your God's voice, to observe to do all his commandments which I command you today, that Yahweh your God will set you high above all the nations of the earth. ² All these blessings will come upon you, and overtake you, if you listen to Yahweh your God's voice. ³ You shall be blessed in the city, and you shall be blessed in the field. ⁴ You shall be blessed in the fruit of your body, the fruit of your ground, the fruit of your animals, the increase of your livestock, and the young of your flock. ⁵ Your basket and your kneading trough shall be blessed. ⁶ You shall be blessed when you come in, and you shall be blessed when you go out. ⁷ Yahweh will cause your enemies who rise up against you to be struck before you. They will come out against you one way, and will flee before you seven ways. 8 Yahweh will command the blessing on you in your barns, and in all that you put your hand to. He will bless you in the land which Yahweh your God gives you. ⁹ Yahweh will establish you for a holy people to himself, as he has sworn to you, if you shall keep the commandments of Yahweh your God, and walk in his ways. ¹⁰ All the peoples of the earth shall see that you are called by Yahweh's name, and they will be afraid of you. ¹¹ Yahweh will grant you abundant prosperity in the fruit of your body, in the fruit of your livestock, and in the fruit of your ground, in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give you. ¹² Yahweh will open to you his good treasure in the sky, to give the rain of your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand. You will lend to many nations, and you will not borrow. 13 Yahweh will make you the head, and not the tail. You will be above only, and you will not be beneath, if you listen to the commandments of Yahweh your God which I command you today, to observe and to do, ¹⁴ and shall not turn away from any of the words which I command you today, to the right hand or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

Psalm 18:46-50

- ⁴⁶ Yahweh lives! Blessed be my rock. Exalted be the God of my salvation,
- ⁴⁷ even the God who executes vengeance for me, and subdues peoples under me.
- ⁴⁸ He rescues me from my enemies.
 - Yes, you lift me up above those who rise up against me.
 - You deliver me from the violent man.
- ⁴⁹Therefore I will give thanks to you, Yahweh, among the nations, and will sing praises to your name.
- ⁵⁰ He gives great deliverance to his king,

and shows loving kindness to his anointed, to David and to his offspring, [a] forever more.

Psalm 103:3-18

- ³ who forgives all your sins, who heals all your diseases,
- ⁴ who redeems your life from destruction, who crowns you with loving kindness and tender mercies,
- 5 who satisfies your desire with good things, so that your youth is renewed like the eagle's.
- ⁶ Yahweh executes righteous acts,
- and justice for all who are oppressed.

 He made known his ways to Moses,
- his deeds to the children of Israel.
- ⁸ Yahweh is merciful and gracious, slow to anger, and abundant in loving kindness.
- ⁹ He will not always accuse; neither will he stay angry forever.
- ¹⁰ He has not dealt with us according to our sins, nor repaid us for our iniquities.
- ¹¹ For as the heavens are high above the earth, so great is his loving kindness toward those who fear him.
- ¹² As far as the east is from the west,
 - so far has he removed our transgressions from us.
- ¹³ Like a father has compassion on his children, so Yahweh has compassion on those who fear him.
- ¹⁴ For he knows how we are made.

He remembers that we are dust.

- ¹⁵ As for man, his days are like grass.
 - As a flower of the field, so he flourishes.
- $^{\mathbf{16}}\,\mathsf{For}$ the wind passes over it, and it is gone.
 - Its place remembers it no more.
- ¹⁷ But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,
- ¹⁸ to those who keep his covenant,

to those who remember to obey his precepts.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare I will OBEY the Lord my God/Adonai Eloheinu: I will OBEY His Words with ALL MY HEART and ALL MY BEING! The Lord/Adonai is my God/Eloheinu and I will FOLLOW His WAYS, OBSERVE His Laws, Commandments and Rulings to do WHATEVER HE SAYS!
- ➤ I decree and declare to the OBEDIENT: the Lord/Adonai agrees that you are His OWN UNIQUE TREASURE, as He Promised you; that you are to OBSERVE all His Commandments; and that He will RAISE YOU HIGH above all the Nations and above the surrounding Peoples He has made, in

- PRAISE, REPUTATION and GLORY; and that, as He said, you will be a HOLY PEOPLE for the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are BLESSED in the City and BLESSED in the Countryside. The BLESSING of the Lord/Adonai is on the fruit of your body, the fruit of your land and the fruit of your livestock. There is a BLESSING on your grain basket and your kneading bowl. You are BLESSED when you GO OUT and when you COME IN!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai causes your enemies attacking you to be DEFEATED before you; they will advance on you one way and FLEE before you seven ways!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai orders a BLESSING to be with you in EVERYTHING you undertake; He is BLESSING you in the Land that He has given you. The Lord/Adonai is ESTABLISHING you as a People SEPARATED OUT for Himself, as He has sworn to you if you will observe the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu and follow His Ways.
- ➤ I decree and declare all Peoples on Earth will SEE that the Lord's/Adonai's Name, His PRESENCE, is with you; so that they will be afraid of you. The Lord/Adonai will open for you His Good TREASURE to bless Everything you undertake. You will lend to many Nations and not borrow; the Lord/Adonai will make you the Head and not the Tail; and you will be only ABOVE; never below if you will LISTEN to, OBSERVE and OBEY the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is ALIVE! Blessed is my Rock! EXALTED is the God/Elohim of my SALVATION, the God/Elohim Who avenges me and SUBDUES Peoples under me. He DELIVERS me from my enemies. He LIFTS ME HIGH above my enemies, He RESCUES ME from violent men!
- ➤ I decree and declare I give THANKS to You, Lord/Adonai, among the Nations; I sing PRAISES to Your Name. Great SALVATION He gives to His Chosen Ones; He displays GRACE to His Anointed, FOREVER!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai SURROUNDS you with GRACE and COMPASSION, He contents you with Good as long as you live, so that your YOUTH is RENEWED like an Eagle's.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai brings VINDICATION and JUSTICE to all who are oppressed. He is MERCIFUL and COMPASSIONATE, slow to anger and rich in GRACE. He has not treated us as our sins deserve or paid us back for our offenses, because His MERCY toward those who FEAR Him is as far above Earth as Heaven.
- ➤ I decree and declare the MERCY of the Lord/Adonai on those who FEAR Him is from Eternity Past to Eternity Future, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to His Children's Children, provided they keep His Covenant and REMEMBER to follow His Precepts.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 13, 2019]

Consecrate Yourself

Consecrate Yourselves!

Nehemiah 9: 1-6; Revelation 10:4-11; Deuteronomy 32:39-43; Daniel 12:5-11; Psalm 146:1-6 (WEB)

Nehemiah 9: 1-6

Now in the twenty-fourth day of this month the children of Israel were assembled with fasting, with sackcloth, and dirt on them. ² The offspring of Israel separated themselves from all foreigners and stood and confessed their sins and the iniquities of their fathers. ³ They stood up in their place, and read in the book of the law of Yahweh their God a fourth part of the day; and a fourth part they confessed, and worshiped Yahweh their God. ⁴ Then Jeshua, Bani, Kadmiel, Shebaniah, Bunni, Sherebiah, Bani, and Chenani of the Levites stood up on the stairs, and cried with a loud voice to Yahweh their God.

⁵ Then the Levites, Jeshua, and Kadmiel, Bani, Hashabneiah, Sherebiah, Hodiah, Shebaniah, and Pethahiah, said, "Stand up and bless Yahweh your God from everlasting to everlasting! Blessed be your glorious name, which is exalted above all blessing and praise! ⁶ You are Yahweh, even you alone. You have made heaven, the heaven of heavens, with all their army, the earth and all things that are on it, the seas and all that is in them, and you preserve them all. The army of heaven worships you.

Revelation 10:4-11

⁴ When the seven thunders sounded, I was about to write; but I heard a voice from the sky saying, "Seal up the things which the seven thunders said, and don't write them."

⁵ The angel whom I saw standing on the sea and on the land lifted up his right hand to the sky, ⁶ and swore by him who lives forever and ever, who created heaven and the things that are in it, the earth and the things that are in it, and the sea and the things that are in it, that there will no longer be delay, ⁷ but in the days of the voice of the seventh angel, when he is about to sound, then the mystery of God is finished, as he declared to his servants, the prophets. ⁸ The voice which I heard from heaven, again speaking with me, said, "Go, take the book which is open in the hand of the angel who stands on the sea and on the land."

⁹I went to the angel, telling him to give me the little book.

He said to me, "Take it, and eat it. It will make your stomach bitter, but in your mouth it will be as sweet as honey."

¹⁰ I took the little book out of the angel's hand, and ate it. It was as sweet as honey in my mouth. When I had eaten it, my stomach was made bitter. ¹¹ They^[a] told me, "You must prophesy again over many peoples, nations, languages, and kings."

Deuteronomy 32:39-43

³⁹ "See now that I myself am he.

There is no god with me.

I kill and I make alive.

I wound and I heal.

There is no one who can deliver out of my hand.

⁴⁰ For I lift up my hand to heaven and declare, as I live forever,

 ⁴¹ if I sharpen my glittering sword, my hand grasps it in judgment;
 I will take vengeance on my adversaries, and will repay those who hate me.
 ⁴² I will make my arrows drunk with blood. My sword shall devour flesh with the blood of the slain and the captives, from the head of the leaders of the enemy."

Rejoice, you nations, with his people,
 for he will avenge the blood of his servants.
 He will take vengeance on his adversaries,
 and will make atonement for his land and for his people.

Daniel 12:5-11

⁵ Then I, Daniel, looked, and behold, two others stood, one on the river bank on this side, and the other on the river bank on that side. ⁶ One said to the man clothed in linen, who was above the waters of the river, "How long will it be to the end of these wonders?"

⁷I heard the man clothed in linen, who was above the waters of the river, when he held up his right hand and his left hand to heaven, and swore by him who lives forever that it will be for a time, times, and a half; and when they have finished breaking in pieces the power of the holy people, all these things will be finished.

⁸I heard, but I didn't understand. Then I said, "My lord, what will be the outcome of these things?"

⁹ He said, "Go your way, Daniel; for the words are shut up and sealed until the time of the end. ¹⁰ Many will purify themselves, and make themselves white, and be refined; but the wicked will do wickedly; and none of the wicked will understand; but those who are wise will understand.

¹¹ "From the time that the continual burnt offering is taken away, and the abomination that makes desolate set up, there will be one thousand two hundred ninety days.

Psalm 146:1-6

Praise Yah!

Praise Yahweh, my soul.

² While I live, I will praise Yahweh.

I will sing praises to my God as long as I exist.

³ Don't put your trust in princes,

in a son of man in whom there is no help.

 $^{\mathbf{4}}\,\mathrm{His}$ spirit departs, and he returns to the earth.

In that very day, his thoughts perish.

⁵ Happy is he who has the God of Jacob for his help, whose hope is in Yahweh, his God:

⁶ who made heaven and earth,

the sea, and all that is in them; who keeps truth forever;

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare it is time for the People of God to assemble for a FAST. SEPARATE yourselves from those of the World, CONFESS your own sins and the iniquities of your ancestors. DWELL in His Presence and STUDY His Scriptures. This is a time of CONSECRATION for the Days of the End are drawing near when Judgment will come upon the Earth.
- ➤ I decree and declare we cry out loudly to the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu; we BLESS Him from EVERLASTING to EVERLASTING! Blessed be the Name of the Lord/Adonai! You, Lord/Adonai made Heaven, the Heaven of Heavens, with all their array, the Earth and all the things that are in it, the Seas and all that is in them; and You PRESERVE them all. The Army of Heaven WORSHIPS You!
- ➤ I decree and declare the time of GRACE will soon be complete! The ANGEL will stand on the Sea and on the Land lifting his RIGHT HAND toward Heaven, swearing by the One Who LIVES FOREVER and EVER, Who created Heaven and what is in it, Earth and what is in it, and the Sea and what is in it.
- ➤ I decree and declare in the Days of the SOUND from the Seventh Angel when he SOUNDS his SHOFAR, the HIDDEN PLAN of God will be brought to COMPLETION, the Good News as He proclaimed it to His Servants the Prophets!
- I decree and declare You, Lord God/Adonai Elohim, are God/Elohim, there is no god beside You! You put to death and You make ALIVE; You wound, and You HEAL; NO ONE SAVES ANYONE FROM YOUR HAND!
- ➤ I decree and declare You, God Almighty/ El Shaddai, are ALIVE FOREVER! If You sharpen Your FLASHING SWORD and set Your Hand to JUDGMENT, You will render VENGEANCE to Your foes, REPAY those who hate You.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Nations will SING out about the People of God! For He will AVENGE the blood of His Servants. He will render VENGEANCE to His adversaries and make ATONEMENT for the Land of His People!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Words spoken to the Prophets have remained a SECRET and SEALED until the SOON COMING TIME of the END. Many will PURIFY, CLEANSE and REFINE themselves; but the wicked will keep on acting wickedly, and none of the wicked will UNDERSTAND. But those with DISCERNMENT will UNDERSTAND.
- ➤ I decree and declare HALLELUYAH! My soul PRAISES the Lord/Adonai; I will PRAISE Him as long as I live. I will SING PRAISE to my God all my life!

- ➤ I decree and declare you do not place your TRUST in Princes or mortals, who cannot help. When they breathe their last, they return to dust; on that very day all their plans are gone. HAPPY are you whose HELP is the God of Israel, whose HOPE is in the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu. He made Heaven and Earth, the Sea and everything in them; He keeps FAITH FOREVER!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 15, 2019]

You Must Choose to Sanctify Yourself!

2 Chronicles 29:1-6, 10-11, 15-19, 31, 35-36; Romans 12:1-21; 1 Peter 1:13-25 (WEB)

2 Chronicles 29:1-6, 10-11, 15-19, 31, 35-36

Hezekiah began to reign when he was twenty-five years old, and he reigned twenty-nine years in Jerusalem. His mother's name was Abijah, the daughter of Zechariah. ² He did that which was right in Yahweh's eyes, according to all that David his father had done. ³ In the first year of his reign, in the first month, he opened the doors of Yahweh's house, and repaired them. ⁴ He brought in the priests and the Levites, and gathered them together into the wide place on the east, ⁵ and said to them, "Listen to me, you Levites! Now sanctify yourselves, and sanctify the house of Yahweh, the God of your fathers, and carry the filthiness out of the holy place. ⁶ For our fathers were unfaithful, and have done that which was evil in Yahweh our God's sight, and have forsaken him, and have turned away their faces from the habitation of Yahweh, and turned their backs....

¹⁰ Now it is in my heart to make a covenant with Yahweh, the God of Israel, that his fierce anger may turn away from us. ¹¹ My sons, don't be negligent now; for Yahweh has chosen you to stand before him, to minister to him, and that you should be his ministers, and burn incense."...

¹⁵They gathered their brothers, sanctified themselves, and went in, according to the commandment of the king by Yahweh's words, to cleanse Yahweh's house. ¹⁶The priests went into the inner part of Yahweh's house to cleanse it, and brought out all the uncleanness that they found in Yahweh's temple into the court of Yahweh's house. The Levites took it from there to carry it out to the brook Kidron. ¹⁷Now they began on the first day of the first month to sanctify, and on the eighth day of the month they came to Yahweh's porch. They sanctified Yahweh's house in eight days, and on the sixteenth day of the first month they finished. ¹⁸Then they went in to Hezekiah the king within the palace, and said, "We have cleansed all Yahweh's house, including the altar of burnt offering with all its vessels, and the table of show bread with all its vessels. ¹⁹Moreover, we have prepared and sanctified all the vessels which king Ahaz threw away in his reign, when he was unfaithful. Behold, they are before Yahweh's altar."...

³¹Then Hezekiah answered, "Now you have consecrated yourselves to Yahweh. Come near and bring sacrifices and thank offerings into Yahweh's house." The assembly brought in sacrifices and thank offerings, and as many as were of a willing heart brought burnt offerings....

³⁵ Also the burnt offerings were in abundance, with the fat of the peace offerings, and with the drink offerings for every burnt offering. So the service of Yahweh's house was set in order. ³⁶ Hezekiah and all the people rejoiced, because of that which God had prepared for the people; for the thing was done suddenly.

Romans 12:1-21

Therefore I urge you, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your bodies a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable to God, which is your spiritual service. ² Don't be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewing of your mind, so that you may prove what is the good, well-pleasing, and perfect will of God.

³ For I say through the grace that was given me, to every man who is among you, not to think of himself more highly than he ought to think; but to think reasonably, as God has apportioned to each person a measure of faith. ⁴ For even as we have many members in one body, and all the members don't have the same function, ⁵ so we, who are many, are one body in Christ, and individually members of one another, ⁶ having gifts differing according to the grace that was given to us: if prophecy, let's prophesy according to the proportion of our faith; ⁷ or service, let's give ourselves to service; or he who teaches, to his teaching; ⁸ or he who exhorts, to his exhorting; he who gives, let him do it with generosity; he who rules, with diligence; he who shows mercy, with cheerfulness.

⁹ Let love be without hypocrisy. Abhor that which is evil. Cling to that which is good. ¹⁰ In love of the brothers be tenderly affectionate to one another; in honor preferring one another; ¹¹ not lagging in diligence; fervent in spirit; serving the Lord; ¹² rejoicing in hope; enduring in troubles; continuing steadfastly in prayer; ¹³ contributing to the needs of the saints; given to hospitality. ¹⁴ Bless those who persecute you; bless, and don't curse. ¹⁵ Rejoice with those who rejoice. Weep with those who weep. ¹⁶ Be of the same mind one toward another. Don't set your mind on high things, but associate with the humble. Don't be wise in your own conceits. ¹⁷ Repay no one evil for evil. Respect what is honorable in the sight of all men. ¹⁸ If it is possible, as much as it is up to you, be at peace with all men. ¹⁹ Don't seek revenge yourselves, beloved, but give place to God's wrath. For it is written, "Vengeance belongs to me; I will repay, says the Lord." Deuteronomy 32:35 ²⁰ Therefore "If your enemy is hungry, feed him.

If he is thirsty, give him a drink;

for in doing so, you will heap coals of fire on his head." Proverbs 25:21-22

1 Peter 1:13-25

¹³ Therefore prepare your minds for action. ^[a] Be sober, and set your hope fully on the grace that will be brought to you at the revelation of Jesus Christ— ¹⁴ as children of obedience, not conforming yourselves according to your former lusts as in your ignorance, ¹⁵ but just as he who called you is holy, you yourselves also be holy in all of your behavior; ¹⁶ because it is written, "You shall be holy; for I am holy." Leviticus 11:44-45 ¹⁷ If you call on him as Father, who without respect of persons judges according to each man's work, pass the time of your living as foreigners here in reverent fear, ¹⁸ knowing that you were redeemed, not with corruptible things, with silver or gold, from the useless way of life handed down from your fathers, ¹⁹ but with precious blood, as of a lamb without blemish or spot, the blood of Christ, ²⁰ who was foreknown indeed before the foundation of the world, but was revealed in this last age for your sake, ²¹ who through him are believers in God, who raised him from the dead, and gave him glory, so that your faith and hope might be in God.

and all of man's glory like the flower in the grass.

The grass withers, and its flower falls;

²¹ Don't be overcome by evil, but overcome evil with good.

²² Seeing you have purified your souls in your obedience to the truth through the Spirit in sincere brotherly affection, love one another from the heart fervently, ²³ having been born again, not of corruptible seed, but of incorruptible, through the word of God, which lives and remains forever. ²⁴ For, "All flesh is like grass,

but the Lord's word endures forever." Isaiah 40:6-8

This is the word of Good News which was preached to you.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare I CHOOSE to do RIGHT in the Eyes of the Lord/Adonai. I will SPEAK to myself and to all who have Ears: "SANCTIFY YOURSELVES and SANCTIFY the House of the Lord/Adonai and REMOVE the DEFILEMENT out of the Holy Place!
- ➤ I decree and declare it is my Heart to REPENT for the sins of this Nation, to ACKNOWLEDGE HIS WORD and to CALL YOU, all Believers, in the Land to HUMBLE YOURSELVES and PRAY and SEEK the FACE of GOD/ELOHIM and turn from your wicked ways, then HE WILL HEAR from Heaven, will FORVIGE YOUR SINS and will HEAL the Land! (2 Chronicles 7:14)
- ➤ I decree and declare we, who BELIEVE in Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, are the Children of God we are each His Temple on Earth He dwells within each of us. So, CLEANSE yourselves of EVERY IMPURE THING! He has called us to be a Holy People, because He is Holy! (1 Corinthians 3:16, Deuteronomy 7:6)
- ➤ I decree and declare I REJOICE for the CLEANSING which YOU, God/Elohim, my Father/Abba, have made possible through the SACRIFICE and RESURRECTION of Your Son, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!
- ➤ I decree and declare to you, all Brothers and Sisters, by the MERCIES of God/Elohim, to PRESENT YOUR BODIES AS A LIVING SACRIFICE HOLY, ACCEPTABLE TO GOD which is your spiritual service. You will not be conformed to this World but are being TRANSFORMED by the RENEWING of your mind, so that you will DISCERN what is the Will of God/Elohim what is GOOD and ACCEPTABLE and PERFECT!
- ➤ I decree and declare I let LOVE be without hypocrisy detesting what is evil, HOLDING FAST to the GOOD. I am tenderly DEVOTED to others in brotherly LOVE. I will not lag in ZEAL; I am FERVENT in SPIRIT. I will CONTINUE SERVING THE LORD, REJOICING in HOPE, enduring in distress, PERSISTING in PRAYER, contributing o the needs of the Saints/Kedoshim, extending hospitality.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not take my own REVENGE but will GIVE ROOM FOR GOD'S/ELOHIM'S WRATH for it is written, "Vengeance is Mine; I will repay," says the Lord/Adonai. Do not be overcome by evil, but OVERCOME EVIL WITH GOOD!
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM BRACING MY MIND FOR ACTION keeping my balance! My hope is set COMPLETELY on the GRACE that will be brought to me at the REVELATION of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah! I am obedient and will not be shaped by the cravings I had formerly in my ignorance. Instead, just like the Holy One Who CALLED ME, I will be holy in EVERYTHING I do. For it is written, "Holy Ones/Kedoshim you shall be, for I am HOLY!"
- decree and declare I will live out my time of SOJOURNING IN REVERENT FEAR for I call God/Elohim my Father/Abba—the One Who JUDGES IMPARTIALLY according to each one's

deeds! I was REDEEMED from the futile way of life — not with perishable things such as silver or gold, but with the PRECIOUS BLOOD of CHRIST/MESSIAH!

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 28, 2019]

You are Anointed to Call the People Back to the Lord God Almighty!

Psalm 103:13-22; 2 Chronicles 29:1-11,20, 23-24, 29-31, 35-36 (WEB)

Psalm 103:13-22

- ¹³ Like a father has compassion on his children, so Yahweh has compassion on those who fear him.
- ¹⁴ For he knows how we are made.

He remembers that we are dust.

- ¹⁵ As for man, his days are like grass.
 As a flower of the field, so he flourishes.
- ¹⁶ For the wind passes over it, and it is gone. Its place remembers it no more.
- ¹⁷ But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,
- ¹⁸ to those who keep his covenant, to those who remember to obey his precepts.
- ¹⁹ Yahweh has established his throne in the heavens. His kingdom rules over all.
- Praise Yahweh, you angels of his, who are mighty in strength, who fulfill his word, obeying the voice of his word.
- ²¹ Praise Yahweh, all you armies of his, you servants of his, who do his pleasure.
- Praise Yahweh, all you works of his, in all places of his dominion.
 Praise Yahweh, my soul!

2 Chronicles 29:1-11,20, 23-24, 29-31, 35-36

Hezekiah began to reign when he was twenty-five years old, and he reigned twenty-nine years in Jerusalem. His mother's name was Abijah, the daughter of Zechariah. ² He did that which was right in Yahweh's eyes, according to all that David his father had done. ³ In the first year of his reign, in the first month, he opened the doors of Yahweh's house, and repaired them. ⁴ He brought in the priests and the Levites, and gathered them together into the wide place on the east, 5 and said to them, "Listen to me, you Levites! Now sanctify yourselves, and sanctify the house of Yahweh, the God of your fathers, and carry the filthiness out of the holy place. ⁶ For our fathers were unfaithful, and have done that which was evil in Yahweh our God's sight, and have forsaken him, and have turned away their faces from the habitation of Yahweh, and turned their backs. ⁷ Also they have shut up the doors of the porch, and put out the lamps, and have not burned incense nor offered burnt offerings in the holy place to the God of Israel. 8 Therefore Yahweh's wrath was on Judah and Jerusalem, and he has delivered them to be tossed back and forth, to be an astonishment, and a hissing, as you see with your eyes. ⁹ For, behold, our fathers have fallen by the sword, and our sons and our daughters and our wives are in captivity for this. 10 Now it is in my heart to make a covenant with Yahweh, the God of Israel, that his fierce anger may turn away from us. 11 My sons, don't be negligent now; for Yahweh has chosen you to stand before him, to minister to him, and that you should be his ministers, and burn incense."...

²⁰ Then Hezekiah the king arose early, gathered the princes of the city, and went up to Yahweh's house....

²³ They brought near the male goats for the sin offering before the king and the assembly; and they laid their hands on them. ²⁴ Then the priests killed them, and they made a sin offering with their blood on the altar, to make atonement for all Israel; for the king commanded that the burnt offering and the sin offering should be made for all Israel....

²⁹ When they had finished offering, the king and all who were present with him bowed themselves and worshiped. ³⁰ Moreover Hezekiah the king and the princes commanded the Levites to sing praises to Yahweh with the words of David, and of Asaph the seer. They sang praises with gladness, and they bowed their heads and worshiped.

³¹ Then Hezekiah answered, "Now you have consecrated yourselves to Yahweh. Come near and bring sacrifices and thank offerings into Yahweh's house." The assembly brought in sacrifices and thank offerings, and as many as were of a willing heart brought burnt offerings....

³⁵ Also the burnt offerings were in abundance, with the fat of the peace offerings, and with the drink offerings for every burnt offering. So the service of Yahweh's house was set in order. ³⁶ Hezekiah and all the people rejoiced, because of that which God had prepared for the people; for the thing was done suddenly.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has COMPASSION on ALL who FEAR Him! He UNDERSTANDS how you are made, He remembers that you are but dust. The MERCY on you who FEAR Him is beyond comprehension, it is from ETERNITY PAST to ETERNITY FUTURE, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to your children's children, PROVIDED you keep His Covenant and REMEMBER to FOLLOW His precepts.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has ESTABLISHED His THRONE in Heaven, His Kingly Power RULES Everything. BLESS the Lord/Adonai, you ANGELS of His, you Mighty Warriors who OBEY His Word, who carry out His Orders! BLESS the Lord/Adonai, all His Troops, who SERVE Him and DO what He wants! BLESS the Lord/Adonai, all His works, in Every Place where He RULES! BLESS the Lord/Adonai, my soul!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are DOING WHAT IS RIGHT from the Lord's/Adonai's perspective, following the examples of your forefathers and everything David and the patriarchs did to follow the Lord.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has ANOINTED YOU to CLEAN the DROSS out from the congregations and to RESTORE HIS ORDER! Repair the breaches in the walls, repair the doors; assemble the People, the Priests of the Lord and CONSECRATE them Now, CONSECRATE the House of the Lord/Adonai the God/Elohim of your ancestors, and REMOVE the filth from the Holy Place.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai knows you who no longer FOLLOW Him. He sees you who act TREACHEROUSLY and do what is evil from His perspective. You have abandoned Him, you turned your faces away from where the Lord LIVES and have turned your backs on Him. You have, as such, SEALED THE DOORS of His vestibule, put out His LAMPS and stopped burning incense, lifting your worship and praises; and giving offerings in the Holy Place to the God of Israel.
- ➤ I decree and declare it is in our HEART to stand in the GAP for those who have been negligent. We make a COVENANT with the Lord/Adonai God of Israel, so that His anger will turn from our Nations. Now is not a time for being negligent; for WE ARE THE ONES the Lord/Adonai has chosen to STAND BEFORE HIM as His ministers, offering Him incense of PRAISE and ADORATION.
- ➤ I decree and declare we lift up our Nations before the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai in humility, knowing that, as we seek His FACE and turn from our wicked ways, HE IS FAITHFUL to HEAR from Heaven, FORGIVE our sins and HEAL our Lands. (2 Chronicles 7:14)
- ➤ I decree and declare as we are CONSECRATED, with HUMILITY before the Lord/Adonai, we bow down and prostrate ourselves before Him; we sing PRAISES to Him and He FILLS US WITH JOY! You are INVITED to COME CLOSE, to enter the Lord's Presence with continual THANKSGIVING.
- ➤ I decree and declare the TRUE WORSHIP and SERVICE of the Lord, with SIGNS and WONDERS of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh, are being RESTORED to His Congregations. We REJOICE over what the Lord has PREPARED for His People, because it is happening SUDDENLY!
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, July 28, 2018]

You Have a Holy Calling!

2 Timothy 1:6-14; 2:1-26; Romans 8:28-30; Hebrews 3:1-15 (WEB)

2 Timothy 1:6-14

⁶ For this cause, I remind you that you should stir up the gift of God which is in you through the laying on of my hands. ⁷ For God didn't give us a spirit of fear, but of power, love, and self-control. ⁸ Therefore don't be ashamed of the testimony of our Lord, nor of me his prisoner; but endure hardship for the Good News according to the power of God, ⁹ who saved us and called us with a holy calling, not according to our works, but according to his own purpose and grace, which was given to us in Christ Jesus before times eternal, ¹⁰ but has now been revealed by the appearing of our Savior, Christ Jesus, who abolished death, and brought life and immortality to light through the Good News. ¹¹ For this I was appointed as a preacher, an apostle, and a teacher of the Gentiles. ¹² For this cause I also suffer these things.

Yet I am not ashamed, for I know him whom I have believed, and I am persuaded that he is able to guard that which I have committed to him against that day.

¹³ Hold the pattern of sound words which you have heard from me, in faith and love which is in Christ Jesus. ¹⁴ That good thing which was committed to you, guard through the Holy Spirit who dwells in us.

2 Timothy 2:1-26

You therefore, my child, be strengthened in the grace that is in Christ Jesus. ² The things which you have heard from me among many witnesses, commit the same things to faithful men, who will be able to teach others also. ³ You therefore must endure hardship as a good soldier of Christ Jesus. ⁴ No soldier on duty entangles himself in the affairs of life, that he may please him who enrolled him as a soldier. ⁵ Also, if anyone competes in athletics, he isn't crowned unless he has competed by the rules. ⁶ The farmer who labors must be the first to get a share of the crops. ⁷ Consider what I say, and may the Lord give you understanding in all things.

⁸ Remember Jesus Christ, risen from the dead, of the offspring^[a] of David, according to my Good News, ⁹ in which I suffer hardship to the point of chains as a criminal. But God's word isn't chained. ¹⁰ Therefore I endure all things for the chosen ones' sake, that they also may obtain the salvation which is in Christ Jesus with eternal glory. ¹¹ This saying is trustworthy:

"For if we died with him,

we will also live with him.

¹² If we endure,

we will also reign with him.

If we deny him,

he also will deny us.

¹³ If we are faithless,

he remains faithful;

for he can't deny himself."

¹⁴Remind them of these things, charging them in the sight of the Lord, that they don't argue about words, to no profit, to the subverting of those who hear.

¹⁵ Give diligence to present yourself approved by God, a workman who doesn't need to be ashamed, properly handling the Word of Truth. ¹⁶ But shun empty chatter, for it will go further in ungodliness, ¹⁷ and those words will consume like gangrene, of whom is Hymenaeus and Philetus: ¹⁸ men who have erred concerning the truth, saying that the resurrection is already past, and overthrowing the faith of some. ¹⁹ However God's firm foundation stands, having this seal, "The Lord knows those who are his," Numbers 16:5 and, "Let every one who names the name of the Lord depart from unrighteousness." ²⁰ Now in a large house there are not only vessels of gold and of silver, but also of wood and of clay. Some are for honor, and some for dishonor. ²¹ If anyone therefore purges himself from these, he will be a vessel for honor, sanctified, and suitable for the master's use, prepared for every good work.

²² Flee from youthful lusts; but pursue righteousness, faith, love, and peace with those who call on the Lord out of a pure heart. ²³ But refuse foolish and ignorant questionings, knowing that they generate strife. ²⁴ The Lord's servant must not quarrel, but be gentle toward all, able to teach, patient, ²⁵ in gentleness correcting those who oppose him: perhaps God may give them repentance leading to a full knowledge of the truth, ²⁶ and they may recover themselves out of the devil's snare, having been taken captive by him to his will.

Romans 8:28-30

²⁸ We know that all things work together for good for those who love God, for those who are called according to his purpose. ²⁹ For whom he foreknew, he also predestined to be conformed to the image of his Son, that he might be the firstborn among many brothers. ^{[a] 30} Whom he predestined, those he also called. Whom he called, those he also justified. Whom he justified, those he also glorified.

Hebrews 3:1-15

Therefore, holy brothers, partakers of a heavenly calling, consider the Apostle and High Priest of our confession: Jesus, ² who was faithful to him who appointed him, as also Moses was in all his house. ³ For he has been counted worthy of more glory than Moses, because he who built the house has more honor than the house. ⁴ For every house is built by someone; but he who built all things is God. ⁵ Moses indeed was faithful in all his house as a servant, for a testimony of those things which were afterward to be spoken, ⁶ but Christ is faithful as a Son over his house. We are his house, if we hold fast our confidence and the glorying of our hope firm to the end. ⁷ Therefore, even as the Holy Spirit says, "Today if you will hear his voice,

- don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion, in the day of the trial in the wilderness,
- where your fathers tested me and tried me, and saw my deeds for forty years.
- Therefore I was displeased with that generation, and said, 'They always err in their heart, but they didn't know my ways.'
- ¹¹ As I swore in my wrath,

'They will not enter into my rest.'" Psalm 95:7-11

¹² Beware, brothers, lest perhaps there might be in any one of you an evil heart of unbelief, in falling away from the living God; ¹³ but exhort one another day by day, so long as it is called "today", lest any one of you be hardened by the deceitfulness of sin. ¹⁴ For we have become partakers of Christ, if we hold the beginning of our confidence firm to the end, ¹⁵ while it is said,

"Today if you will hear his voice, don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion." Psalm 95:7-8

- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL FAN INTO FLAME the Gift of God/Elohim, which is in me! For God/Elohim has not given me a spirit of timidity but of POWER and LOVE and self-discipline. I am not ashamed of the Testimony of our Lord, Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, nor of those who are His Prisoner, but SHARE IN THE SUFFERING for the Good News ACCORDING TO THE POWER OF GOD!
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim has saved us and CALLED US WITH A HOLY CALLING not because of our deeds but because of HIS OWN PURPOSE AND GRACE! This Grace was given to us in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua before time began, but NOW HAS BEEN REVEALED through the appearing of our Savior Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- ➤ I decree and declare for this Good News I WAS APPOINTED A HERALD and an Apostle and a Teacher! For this reason I also am suffering these things but I AM NOT ASHAMED, for I KNOW IN WHOM I HAVE TRUSTED and I AM CONVINCED HE IS ABLE TO SAFEGUARD what I have ENTRUSTED to Him until that Day!
- ➤ I decree and declare I am STRENGTHENED in the GRACE that is in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. What I have heard by the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh and His Faithful Servants, I will ENTRUST TO THE FAITHFUL PEOPLE who are CAPABLE to TEACH others also. I will suffer hardship as a good soldier of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will ENDURE everything for the sake of the CHOSEN, so they might OBTAIN the SALVATION that is in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua with Eternal Glory! Trustworthy is the saying: If we died with Him, we will also live with Him; if we endure, we will also reign with Him; if we deny Him, He will also deny us; if we are faithless, HE REMAINS FAITHFUL, for He cannot deny Himself!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will PRESENT MYSELF BEFORE GOD/ELOHIM as tried and true, as an UNASHAMED WORKER cutting a straight path with the word of Truth. I will avoid godless chatter, for it leads to further ungodliness.
- ➤ I decree and declare the FIRM FOUNDATION OF GOD STANDS, having this seal: "The Lord knows those who are His," and "Let everyone who names the name of the Lord keep away from unrighteousness." I will flee youthful desires, but instead, I WILL PURSUE RIGHTEOUSNESS, FAITHFULNESS, LOVE, and PEACE/SHALOM, with those who call on the Lord from a Pure Heart.
- ➤ I decree and declare I KNOW THAT ALL THINGS WORK TOGETHER FOR GOOD for YOU who LOVE God/Elohim, who are CALLED ACCORDING TO HIS PURPOSE. For HE FOREKNEW YOU and He also PREDESTINED YOU to be conformed to the image of His Son, so that He might be the firstborn among many brothers and sisters. And to you whom He predestined, HE ALSO CALLED, and to you whom He called, He also JUSTIFIED, and to you whom He justified, He also GLORIFIED!

- ➤ I decree and declare I am among the Holy Brothers and Sisters, PARTNERS IN A HEAVENLY CALLING! I will take notice of Jesus/Yeshua the Emissary and High Priest/Kohen Gadol, Whom we affirm. Christ/Messiah, as Son, is over God's/Elohim's House and WE ARE HIS HOUSE, if we hold firm to our boldness and what we are proud to HOPE.
- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL LISTEN AND OBEY; I will not harden my heart and fall away. I will remain at the feet of the Lord/Adonai, DWELLING IN HIS PRESENCE and trusting Him. I will not entertain the negative thoughts of the enemy. My God is faithful. We have become PARTNERS OF CHRIST/MESSIAH, if we HOLD OUR ORIGINAL CONVICTION firm until the end!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 9, 2020]

You are Chosen of God!

Deuteronomy 7:6-9; Matthew 22:8-14; 1 Thessalonians 1:2-10; Romans 11:2-8, 13-22 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 7:6-9

⁶ For you are a holy people to Yahweh your God. Yahweh your God has chosen you to be a people for his own possession, above all peoples who are on the face of the earth. ⁷ Yahweh didn't set his love on you nor choose you, because you were more in number than any people; for you were the fewest of all peoples; ⁸ but because Yahweh loves you, and because he desires to keep the oath which he swore to your fathers, Yahweh has brought you out with a mighty hand and redeemed you out of the house of bondage, from the hand of Pharaoh king of Egypt. ⁹ Know therefore that Yahweh your God himself is God, the faithful God, who keeps covenant and loving kindness to a thousand generations with those who love him and keep his commandments,

Matthew 22:8-14

⁸ "Then he said to his servants, 'The wedding is ready, but those who were invited weren't worthy. ⁹ Go therefore to the intersections of the highways, and as many as you may find, invite to the wedding feast.' ¹⁰ Those servants went out into the highways and gathered together as many as they found, both bad and good. The wedding was filled with guests.

¹¹ "But when the king came in to see the guests, he saw there a man who didn't have on wedding clothing, ¹² and he said to him, 'Friend, how did you come in here not wearing wedding clothing?' He was speechless. ¹³ Then the king said to the servants, 'Bind him hand and foot, take him away, and throw him into the outer darkness. That is where the weeping and grinding of teeth will be.' ¹⁴ For many are called, but few chosen."

1 Thessalonians 1:2-10

²We always give thanks to God for all of you, mentioning you in our prayers, ³ remembering without ceasing your work of faith and labor of love and perseverance of hope in our Lord Jesus Christ, before our God and Father. ⁴We know, brothers loved by God, that you are chosen, ⁵ and that our Good News came to you not in word only, but also in power, and in the Holy Spirit, and with much assurance. You know what kind of men we showed ourselves to be among you for your sake. ⁶ You became imitators of us and of the Lord, having received the word in much affliction, with joy of the Holy Spirit, ⁷ so that you became an example to all who believe in Macedonia and in Achaia. ⁸ For from you the word of the Lord has been declared, not only in Macedonia and Achaia, but also in every place your faith toward God has gone out, so that we need not to say anything. ⁹ For they themselves report concerning us what kind of a reception we had from you, and how you turned to God from idols, to serve a living and true God, ¹⁰ and to wait for his Son from heaven, whom he raised from the dead: Jesus, who delivers us from the wrath to come.

Romans 11:2-8, 13-22

²God didn't reject his people, which he foreknew. Or don't you know what the Scripture says about Elijah? How he pleads with God against Israel: ³ "Lord, they have killed your prophets, they have broken down your altars. I am left alone, and they seek my life." 1 Kings 19:10,14 ⁴ But how does God answer him? "I have reserved for myself seven thousand men who have not bowed the knee to Baal." 1 Kings 19:18 ⁵ Even so then at this present time also there is a remnant according to the election of grace. ⁶ And

if by grace, then it is no longer of works; otherwise grace is no longer grace. But if it is of works, it is no longer grace; otherwise work is no longer work.

⁷ What then? That which Israel seeks for, that he didn't obtain, but the chosen ones obtained it, and the rest were hardened. ⁸ According as it is written, "God gave them a spirit of stupor, eyes that they should not see, and ears that they should not hear, to this very day." Deuteronomy 29:4; Isaiah 29:10...

¹³ For I speak to you who are Gentiles. Since then as I am an apostle to Gentiles, I glorify my ministry; ¹⁴ if by any means I may provoke to jealousy those who are my flesh, and may save some of them. ¹⁵ For if the rejection of them is the reconciling of the world, what would their acceptance be, but life from the dead? ¹⁶ If the first fruit is holy, so is the lump. If the root is holy, so are the branches. ¹⁷ But if some of the branches were broken off, and you, being a wild olive, were grafted in among them and became partaker with them of the root and of the richness of the olive tree, ¹⁸ don't boast over the branches. But if you boast, it is not you who support the root, but the root supports you. ¹⁹ You will say then, "Branches were broken off, that I might be grafted in." ²⁰ True; by their unbelief they were broken off, and you stand by your faith. Don't be conceited, but fear; ²¹ for if God didn't spare the natural branches, neither will he spare you. ²² See then the goodness and severity of God. Toward those who fell, severity; but toward you, goodness, if you continue in his goodness; otherwise you also will be cut off.

- ➤ I decree and declare I am SET APART as HOLY for the Lord my God/Adonai Elohei! He has CHOSEN each of us out of all the People on the face of the Earth as His OWN UNIQUE TREASURE because He LOVED us!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu is indeed God, the FAITHFUL God, Who keeps His Covenant and EXTENDS GRACE to those who LOVE Him and OBSERVE His Commands, to a thousand generations!
- ➤ I decree and declare there are those who have been invited to the Wedding Feast of the Lamb but have failed to RESPOND and do not deserve to attend. The Lord is sending His Servants into the streets, the highways and byways to gather all those who will COME: good and bad alike, that the Wedding Hall will be filled.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord will know those who have ANSWERED His CALL. Those who are not dressed for the Wedding will be thrown outside into outer darkness. In that place people will wail and grind their teeth, for MANY ARE INVITED, BUT FEW ARE CHOSEN!
- ➤ I decree and declare that our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah has brought about in you GREAT MATURITY: your TRUST PRODUCES ACTION, your LOVE HARD WORK, and your HOPE PERSEVERANCE!
- ➤ I decree and declare God has LOVED and CHOSEN you, that the Good news would not become for you a matter only of words, but also one of POWER, Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh and TOTAL CONVICTION!

- ➤ I decree and declare you are IMITATORS of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah, so that even though you were going through severe troubles, YOU RECEIVE the WORD with joy from Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. By doing so you are a PATTERN for all Believers; for the Lord's/Adonai's MESSAGE SOUNDS FORTH from you Everywhere your TRUST toward God becomes known!
- ➤ I decree and declare there is a REMNANT CHOSEN by GRACE that God has kept for this PRESENT AGE. We HOPE that those who are CHOSEN may PROVOKE the Jews to JEALOUSY and save some of them. For if their casting Jesus/Yeshua aside means RECONCILIATION for the World, what will their accepting Him mean? It will be LIFE from the dead!
- ➤ I decree and declare it was because of LACK OF TRUST that the Jews, branches of the Olive Tree, were broken off. The Gentile Believers, a wild olive, were GRAFTED IN among them and have become EQUAL SHARERS in the RICH ROOT, Jesus/Yeshua, of the Olive Tree. You will not boast as if you were better than the branches! However, if you do boast, remember that you are not supporting the root, the root is supporting you.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, April 3, 2019]

Position Yourself

The Lord Guards the Steps of His Called-Out Ones!

Exodus 23:20-27

²⁰ "Behold, I send an angel before you, to keep you by the way, and to bring you into the place which I have prepared. ²¹ Pay attention to him, and listen to his voice. Don't provoke him, for he will not pardon your disobedience, for my name is in him. ²² But if you indeed listen to his voice, and do all that I speak, then I will be an enemy to your enemies, and an adversary to your adversaries. ²³ For my angel shall go before you, and bring you in to the Amorite, the Hittite, the Perizzite, the Canaanite, the Hivite, and the Jebusite; and I will cut them off. ²⁴ You shall not bow down to their gods, nor serve them, nor follow their practices, but you shall utterly overthrow them and demolish their pillars. ²⁵ You shall serve Yahweh your God, and he will bless your bread and your water, and I will take sickness away from among you. ²⁶ No one will miscarry or be barren in your land. I will fulfill the number of your days. ²⁷ I will send my terror before you, and will confuse all the people to whom you come, and I will make all your enemies turn their backs to you.

Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

- ²I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."
- ³ For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.
- ⁴ He will cover you with his feathers.
 Under his wings you will take refuge.
 His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.
- ⁵ You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,
- on of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.
- ⁷ A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.
- ⁸ You will only look with your eyes, and see the recompense of the wicked.
- ⁹ Because you have made Yahweh your refuge, and the Most High your dwelling place,
- no evil shall happen to you, neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.
- ¹¹ For he will put his angels in charge of you, to guard you in all your ways.
- ¹²They will bear you up in their hands, so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.
- ¹³ You will tread on the lion and cobra.

You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.

- ¹⁴ "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him. I will set him on high, because he has known my name.
- ¹⁵ He will call on me, and I will answer him.

I will be with him in trouble.
I will deliver him, and honor him.

I will satisfy him with long life,
and show him my salvation."

1 Samuel 2:1-10

Hannah prayed, and said:
"My heart exults in Yahweh!
My horn is exalted in Yahweh.
My mouth is enlarged over my enemies, because I rejoice in your salvation.

There is no one as holy as Yahweh, for there is no one besides you, nor is there any rock like our God.

3 "Don't keep talking so exceedingly proudly. Don't let arrogance come out of your mouth, for Yahweh is a God of knowledge. By him actions are weighed.

4 "The bows of the mighty men are broken.
Those who stumbled are armed with strength.
5 Those who were full have hired themselves out for bread.
Those who were hungry are satisfied.
Yes, the barren has borne seven.
She who has many children languishes.

6 "Yahweh kills and makes alive.
He brings down to Sheol^a and brings up.
7 Yahweh makes poor and makes rich.
He brings low, he also lifts up.
8 He raises up the poor out of the dust.
He lifts up the needy from the dunghill to make them sit with princes and inherit the throne of glory.
For the pillars of the earth are Yahweh's.
He has set the world on them.

⁹ He will keep the feet of his holy ones, but the wicked will be put to silence in darkness; for no man will prevail by strength.

¹⁰Those who strive with Yahweh shall be broken to pieces. He will thunder against them in the sky.

"Yahweh will judge the ends of the earth.

He will give strength to his king,
and exalt the horn of his anointed."

Philippians 3:1-21

Finally, my brothers, rejoice in the Lord! To write the same things to you, to me indeed is not tiresome, but for you it is safe. ² Beware of the dogs; beware of the evil workers; beware of the false circumcision. ³ For we are the circumcision, who worship God in the Spirit, and rejoice in Christ Jesus, and have no confidence in the flesh; ⁴ though I myself might have confidence even in the flesh. If any other man thinks that he has confidence in the flesh, I yet more: ⁵ circumcised the eighth day, of the stock of Israel, of the tribe of Benjamin, a Hebrew of Hebrews; concerning the law, a Pharisee; ⁶ concerning zeal, persecuting the assembly; concerning the righteousness which is in the law, found blameless.

⁷ However, I consider those things that were gain to me as a loss for Christ. ⁸ Yes most certainly, and I count all things to be a loss for the excellency of the knowledge of Christ Jesus, my Lord, for whom I suffered the loss of all things, and count them nothing but refuse, that I may gain Christ ⁹ and be found in him, not having a righteousness of my own, that which is of the law, but that which is through faith in Christ, the righteousness which is from God by faith, ¹⁰ that I may know him, and the power of his resurrection, and the fellowship of his sufferings, becoming conformed to his death, ¹¹ if by any means I may attain to the resurrection from the dead. ¹² Not that I have already obtained, or am already made perfect; but I press on, that I may take hold of that for which also I was taken hold of by Christ Jesus.

¹³ Brothers, I don't regard myself as yet having taken hold, but one thing I do: forgetting the things which are behind, and stretching forward to the things which are before, ¹⁴ I press on toward the goal for the prize of the high calling of God in Christ Jesus. ¹⁵ Let us therefore, as many as are perfect, think this way. If in anything you think otherwise, God will also reveal that to you. ¹⁶ Nevertheless, to the extent that we have already attained, let's walk by the same rule. Let's be of the same mind.

¹⁷ Brothers, be imitators together of me, and note those who walk this way, even as you have us for an example. ¹⁸ For many walk, of whom I told you often, and now tell you even weeping, as the enemies of the cross of Christ, ¹⁹ whose end is destruction, whose god is the belly, and whose glory is in their shame, who think about earthly things. ²⁰ For our citizenship is in heaven, from where we also wait for a Savior, the Lord Jesus Christ, ²¹ who will change the body of our humiliation to be conformed to the body of his glory, according to the working by which he is able even to subject all things to himself.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim says, "I am sending an Angel before you, to GUARD YOU on the way and to bring you into the Place that I HAVE PREPARED! I PRAISE You, Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai for sending Your Spirit/Ruach and Angelic Hosts to CARE FOR AND PROTECT YOUR PEOPLE!
- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL LISTEN to the Voice of the Lord/Adonai, and His Servants, and do EVERYTHING that He says; so that He will be an enemy to my enemies and an Adversary to my adversaries. For He sends His Angel before me and will bring me to my enemies, and He will CUT THEM OFF. I will not bow down to their gods or serve them or do what they do. Rather I will UTTERLY OVERTHROW THEM and break their pillars in pieces.

- ➤ I decree and declare I LOVE THE LORD JESUS CHRIST/ADONAI YESHUA MESSIAH and SERVE HIM ONLY. As I SERVE the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai, HE WILL BLESS MY FOOD and MY WATER. As we are OBEDIENT, ALL SICKNESS WILL BE REMOVED from our midst. None will miscarry nor be barren in our land, and He will fill up the NUMBER OF OUR DAYS!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai is sending His TERROR before us and will throw all the People to whom we will go into PANIC and will make all our enemies turn their backs to us and FLEE!
- ➤ I decree and declare I DWELL IN THE SHELTER OF THE MOST HIGH/ELYON and abide in the SHADOW of the Almighty/Shaddai! He is my REFUGE and my FORTRESS, my God/Elohai, in Whom I TRUST!
- ➤ I decree and declare my God/Elohai RESCUES ME from the hunter's trap and from the deadly pestilence. HE COVERS ME with His feathers and under His Wings I find REFUGE. His FAITHFULNESS is my BODY ARMOR and SHIELD! I WILL NOT FEAR the terror by Night, nor the arrow that flies by day, nor the plague that stalks in darkness, nor the scourge that lays waste at noon!
- ➤ I decree and declare though a thousand may fall at my side and ten thousand at my right hand, yet DEATH OR HARM WILL NOT COME NEAR ME! I will look on with my eyes and SEE the wicked paid back for their hatred and harm. For I have made the Most High/Elyon my DWELLING, even the Lord/Adonai, Who is my REFUGE, so NO EVIL WILL BEFALL ME nor any plague come near my tent.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim GIVES HIS ANGELS CHARGE OVER ME, to GUARD me in all my ways. They lift me up upon their Hands, lest I strike my foot against a stone. I will tread upon evil spirits: upon the lion and cobra, trample the young lion and serpent. HE WILL DELIVER ALL WHO HAVE DEVOTED THEMSELVES TO HIM He will deliver you!
- ➤ I decree and declare the CALLED-OUT ONES EXULT IN THE LORD/ADONAI! We smile wide over our enemies, for we REJOICE IN HIS SALVATION. There is none HOLY as the Lord/Adonai, for there is none besides Him, nor is there any Rock like our God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim GUARDS THE STEPS OF HIS GODLY ONES! He gives STRENGTH to His King; EXALTING the horn of His ANOINTED ONE!
- ➤ I decree and declare I consider all things to be loss in comparison to the SURPASSING VALUE OF THE KNOWLEDGE OF CHRIST JESUS MY LORD/MESSIAH YESHUA ADONAI. My aim is to KNOW HIM and the POWER of His RESURRECTION and the sharing of His sufferings, becoming like Him in His death.
- ➤ I decree and declare I PRESS ON to take hold of that for which Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua took hold of me. FORGETTING WHAT IS BEHIND and straining toward what is ahead, I PRESS ON TOWARD THE GOAL for the reward of the upward calling of God in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- ➤ I decree and declare that my CITIZENSHIP IS IN HEAVEN and from there I eagerly wait for the Savior, the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah. He will transform this humble body of

mine into the likeness of His glorious body through the POWER that enables Him even to put all things in subjection to Himself.

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 13, 2020]

God is Looking for Those Who Worship Him in Spirit & Truth!

Revelation 11:1; John 4:5-38; Psalm 22:22-31 (WEB)

Revelation 11:1

A reed like a rod was given to me. Someone said, "Rise, and measure God's temple, and the altar, and those who worship in it.

John 4:5-38

⁵ So he came to a city of Samaria, called Sychar, near the parcel of ground that Jacob gave to his son, Joseph. ⁶ Jacob's well was there. Jesus therefore, being tired from his journey, sat down by the well. It was about the sixth hour. ^{[a] 7} A woman of Samaria came to draw water. Jesus said to her, "Give me a drink." ⁸ For his disciples had gone away into the city to buy food.

⁹ The Samaritan woman therefore said to him, "How is it that you, being a Jew, ask for a drink from me, a Samaritan woman?" (For Jews have no dealings with Samaritans.)

¹⁰ Jesus answered her, "If you knew the gift of God, and who it is who says to you, 'Give me a drink,' you would have asked him, and he would have given you living water."

¹¹The woman said to him, "Sir, you have nothing to draw with, and the well is deep. So where do you get that living water? ¹² Are you greater than our father, Jacob, who gave us the well and drank from it himself, as did his children and his livestock?"

¹³ Jesus answered her, "Everyone who drinks of this water will thirst again, ¹⁴ but whoever drinks of the water that I will give him will never thirst again; but the water that I will give him will become in him a well of water springing up to eternal life."

¹⁵The woman said to him, "Sir, give me this water, so that I don't get thirsty, neither come all the way here to draw."

¹⁶ Jesus said to her, "Go, call your husband, and come here."

¹⁷The woman answered, "I have no husband."

Jesus said to her, "You said well, 'I have no husband,' 18 for you have had five husbands; and he whom you now have is not your husband. This you have said truly."

¹⁹The woman said to him, "Sir, I perceive that you are a prophet. ²⁰Our fathers worshiped in this mountain, and you Jews say that in Jerusalem is the place where people ought to worship."

²¹ Jesus said to her, "Woman, believe me, the hour comes, when neither in this mountain, nor in Jerusalem, will you worship the Father. ²² You worship that which you don't know. We worship that which we know; for salvation is from the Jews. ²³ But the hour comes, and now is, when the true worshipers will worship the Father in spirit and truth, for the Father seeks such to be his worshipers. ²⁴ God is spirit, and those who worship him must worship in spirit and truth."

²⁵The woman said to him, "I know that Messiah comes, he who is called Christ. When he has come, he will declare to us all things."

²⁶ Jesus said to her, "I am he, the one who speaks to you." ²⁷ At this, his disciples came. They marveled that he was speaking with a woman; yet no one said, "What are you looking for?" or, "Why do you speak with her?" ²⁸ So the woman left her water pot, went away into the city, and said to the people, ²⁹ "Come, see a man who told me everything that I did. Can this be the Christ?"

³⁰ They went out of the city, and were coming to him. ³¹ In the meanwhile, the disciples urged him, saying, "Rabbi, eat."

³² But he said to them, "I have food to eat that you don't know about."

³³ The disciples therefore said to one another, "Has anyone brought him something to eat?"

³⁴ Jesus said to them, "My food is to do the will of him who sent me and to accomplish his work. ³⁵ Don't you say, 'There are yet four months until the harvest?' Behold, I tell you, lift up your eyes and look at the fields, that they are white for harvest already. ³⁶ He who reaps receives wages and gathers fruit to eternal life; that both he who sows and he who reaps may rejoice together. ³⁷ For in this the saying is true, 'One sows, and another reaps.' ³⁸ I sent you to reap that for which you haven't labored. Others have labored, and you have entered into their labor."

Psalm 22:22-31

²²I will declare your name to my brothers.

Among the assembly, I will praise you.

²³ You who fear Yahweh, praise him!

All you descendants of Jacob, glorify him!

Stand in awe of him, all you descendants of Israel!

²⁴ For he has not despised nor abhorred the affliction of the afflicted, Neither has he hidden his face from him; but when he cried to him, he heard.

²⁵ My praise of you comes in the great assembly.

I will pay my vows before those who fear him.

²⁶ The humble shall eat and be satisfied.

They shall praise Yahweh who seek after him.

Let your hearts live forever.

²⁷ All the ends of the earth shall remember and turn to Yahweh.

All the relatives of the nations shall worship before you.

²⁸ For the kingdom is Yahweh's.

He is the ruler over the nations.

²⁹ All the rich ones of the earth shall eat and worship.

All those who go down to the dust shall bow before him,

even he who can't keep his soul alive.

³⁰ Posterity shall serve him.

Future generations shall be told about the Lord.

³¹They shall come and shall declare his righteousness to a people that shall be born, for he has done it.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai is looking to SEE how many People are Worshipping in His Temple; how many are WORSHIPPING HIM in SPIRIT and in TRUTH! It is not a physical action, but a HEART POSITION and ATTITUDE.
- ➤ I decree and declare, daily, you are GROWING in your AWARENESS of WHO JESUS/YESHUA IS God's GIFT to you! You have accepted Him; You TRUST Him and are LEARNING the many FACETS of His GREATNESS: the Son of God, the Ruler of the Universe.
- ➤ I decree and declare your SPIRITUAL EYES and EARS are comprehending the LEADING of the Spirit. The infilling of Holy Spirit, the Water of Life, through Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah is a SPRING of WATER, welling up into ETERNAL LIFE!
- ➤ I decree and declare TRUE WORSHIPPERS will WORSHIP the Father spiritually and truly, for these are the KIND of PEOPLE the Father wants worshipping Him. God is Spirit, and Worshippers must WORSHIP Him SPIRITUALLY and TRULY!
- ➤ I decree and declare my FOOD is to do what the One Who SENT ME wants and to bring His Work to COMPLETION. I SEE the Fields; they are RIPE for HARVEST! Each of us who REAPS receives our wages and gathers fruit for Eternal Life, so that the reaper and the sower can rejoice together!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will PROCLAIM Your Name, Lord/Adonai, to my Family and Friends; right here in the Assembly I will PRAISE You! All who FEAR the Lord/Adonai, PRAISE HIM! May all descendants of Jacob/Ya'akov and Israel GLORIFY and STAND in AWE of Him!
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim HAS NOT DESPISED nor abhorred the poverty of the poor; He does not hide His Face from him but LISTENS to his Cry. The Poor will EAT and be SATISFIED, those who SEEK the Lord/Adonai will PRAISE Him, their Hearts will enjoy LIFE FOREVER!
- ➤ I decree and declare all the Ends of the Earth will REMEMBER and TURN to the Lord/Adonai; all the clans of the Nations will Worship in the PRESENCE of the Lord/Adonai. All who PROSPER on the Earth will eat and WORSHIP; all who go down to the dust will KNEEL before the Lord/Adonai.
- ➤ I decree and declare our descendants will SERVE our God/Elohim, the next generation will be told of Him. They will come and PROCLAIM His RIGHTEOUSNESS to a People yet unborn, that HE IS THE ONE Who did it.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of

our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 27, 2019]

My Food is to do the Will of the Father!

John 4:4-13, 21-38; John 6:22-40; Acts 5:12-29 (WEB)

John 4:4-13, 21-38

⁴He needed to pass through Samaria. ⁵So he came to a city of Samaria, called Sychar, near the parcel of ground that Jacob gave to his son, Joseph. ⁶Jacob's well was there. Jesus therefore, being tired from his journey, sat down by the well. It was about the sixth hour. ^{[a] 7}A woman of Samaria came to draw water. Jesus said to her, "Give me a drink." ⁸For his disciples had gone away into the city to buy food.

⁹ The Samaritan woman therefore said to him, "How is it that you, being a Jew, ask for a drink from me, a Samaritan woman?" (For Jews have no dealings with Samaritans.)

¹⁰ Jesus answered her, "If you knew the gift of God, and who it is who says to you, 'Give me a drink,' you would have asked him, and he would have given you living water."

¹¹The woman said to him, "Sir, you have nothing to draw with, and the well is deep. So where do you get that living water? ¹² Are you greater than our father, Jacob, who gave us the well and drank from it himself, as did his children and his livestock?"

¹³ Jesus answered her, "Everyone who drinks of this water will thirst again,

John 6:22-40

²² On the next day, the multitude that stood on the other side of the sea saw that there was no other boat there, except the one in which his disciples had embarked, and that Jesus hadn't entered with his disciples into the boat, but his disciples had gone away alone. ²³ However boats from Tiberias came near to the place where they ate the bread after the Lord had given thanks. ²⁴ When the multitude therefore saw that Jesus wasn't there, nor his disciples, they themselves got into the boats, and came to Capernaum, seeking Jesus. ²⁵ When they found him on the other side of the sea, they asked him, "Rabbi, when did you come here?"

²⁶ Jesus answered them, "Most certainly I tell you, you seek me, not because you saw signs, but because you ate of the loaves, and were filled. ²⁷ Don't work for the food which perishes, but for the food which remains to eternal life, which the Son of Man will give to you. For God the Father has sealed him."

²⁸ They said therefore to him, "What must we do, that we may work the works of God?"

²⁹ Jesus answered them, "This is the work of God, that you believe in him whom he has sent."

³⁰They said therefore to him, "What then do you do for a sign, that we may see and believe you? What work do you do? ³¹Our fathers ate the manna in the wilderness. As it is written, 'He gave them bread out of heaven to eat.'" Exodus 16:4; Nehemiah 9:15; Psalm 78:24-25

³² Jesus therefore said to them, "Most certainly, I tell you, it wasn't Moses who gave you the bread out of heaven, but my Father gives you the true bread out of heaven. ³³ For the bread of God is that which comes down out of heaven, and gives life to the world."

³⁵ Jesus said to them, "I am the bread of life. Whoever comes to me will not be hungry, and whoever believes in me will never be thirsty. ³⁶ But I told you that you have seen me, and yet you don't believe. ³⁷ All those whom the Father gives me will come to me. He who comes to me I will in no way throw out. ³⁸ For I have come down from heaven, not to do my own will, but the will of him who sent me. ³⁹ This is the will of my Father who sent me, that of all he has given to me I should lose nothing, but should raise him up at the last day. ⁴⁰ This is the will of the one who sent me, that everyone who sees the Son, and believes in him, should have eternal life; and I will raise him up at the last day."

Acts 5:12-29

¹² By the hands of the apostles many signs and wonders were done among the people. They were all with one accord in Solomon's porch. ¹³ None of the rest dared to join them, however the people honored them. ¹⁴ More believers were added to the Lord, multitudes of both men and women. ¹⁵ They even carried out the sick into the streets, and laid them on cots and mattresses, so that as Peter came by, at the least his shadow might overshadow some of them. ¹⁶ The multitude also came together from the cities around Jerusalem, bringing sick people and those who were tormented by unclean spirits: and they were all healed.

¹⁷ But the high priest rose up, and all those who were with him (which is the sect of the Sadducees), and they were filled with jealousy ¹⁸ and laid hands on the apostles, then put them in public custody. ¹⁹ But an angel of the Lord opened the prison doors by night, and brought them out and said, ²⁰ "Go stand and speak in the temple to the people all the words of this life."

²¹ When they heard this, they entered into the temple about daybreak and taught. But the high priest came, and those who were with him, and called the council together, and all the senate of the children of Israel, and sent to the prison to have them brought. ²² But the officers who came didn't find them in the prison. They returned and reported, ²³ "We found the prison shut and locked, and the guards standing before the doors, but when we opened them, we found no one inside!"

²⁴ Now when the high priest, the captain of the temple, and the chief priests heard these words, they were very perplexed about them and what might become of this. ²⁵ One came and told them, "Behold, the men whom you put in prison are in the temple, standing and teaching the people." ²⁶ Then the captain went with the officers, and brought them without violence, for they were afraid that the people might stone them.

²⁷ When they had brought them, they set them before the council. The high priest questioned them, ²⁸ saying, "Didn't we strictly command you not to teach in this name? Behold, you have filled Jerusalem with your teaching, and intend to bring this man's blood on us."

²⁹ But Peter and the apostles answered, "We must obey God rather than men.

³⁴They said therefore to him, "Lord, always give us this bread."

- ➤ I decree and declare, though I may be exhausted from the JOURNEY, I will ALWAYS give voice to the LOVE of the Father and His CALL to the Lost! The Standards of society and religion will not prohibit me from SHARING GOD'S LOVE.
- ➤ I decree and declare all who drink of the local water supply will thirst again. KNOW that it is Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah that gives you LIVING WATER! As you DRINK of the Water He gives you will NEVER be THIRSTY again! The water will become a FOUNTAIN of WATER within you, springing up to Eternal Life!
- ➤ I decree and declare SALVATION is from the Jews! True Worshipers WORSHIP the Father in SPIRIT and TRUTH, for the Father is seeking such People as His Worshipers. God is Spirit, and; those who worship Him must WORSHIP in SPIRIT and TRUTH!
- ➤ I decree and declare those who SEE and HEAR God's TRUTH and WISDOM will go TELL of His MERCY and GRACE! The Miracles will draw all People unto Salvation in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!
- ➤ I decree and declare my FOOD is to do the will of the Father to ACCOMPLISH HIS WORK! Look, LIFT UP YOUR EYES and look at the fields they are white and READY FOR HARVEST!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not work for food that SPOILS, but for the FOOD that ENDURES to Eternal Life, which I have RECEIVED from the Son of Man, Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah; for on Him the Father has put the Seal of Approval!
- ➤ I decree and declare the TRUE BREAD of God/Elohim is the One, Christ/Messiah, coming down from Heaven and giving LIFE to the World. He is the Bread of Life. Whoever comes to Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah will never be hungry, and whoever believes in Him will never thirst again.
- ➤ I decree and declare through the HANDS of the Believers many SIGNS and WONDERS are happening among the People! Yes, Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua, I am moving in the GIFTS You have given me, as are ALL WHO LOVE YOU! We RECEIVE Your anointing and YIELD to the move of Your Spirit! Amen!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Word of God/Elohim is being HEARD throughout the Land! Even when imprisoned, the Lord/Adonai sends His angels to free from bonds that His Word will be PROCLAIMED without restriction.
- I decree and declare WE MUST OBEY GOD rather than men. The rule of the Land cannot restrict the FREEDOM we have to share of God's Love for all mankind.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 17, 2019]

I am Growing in Discernment!

1 John 4:1-6; Acts 16:16-35; Hebrews 5:5-14; Matthew 4:1-11 (WEB)

1 John 4:1-6

¹ Beloved, don't believe every spirit, but test the spirits, whether they are of God, because many false prophets have gone out into the world. ² By this you know the Spirit of God: every spirit who confesses that Jesus Christ has come in the flesh is of God, ³ and every spirit who doesn't confess that Jesus Christ has come in the flesh is not of God, and this is the spirit of the Antichrist, of whom you have heard that it comes. Now it is in the world already. ⁴You are of God, little children, and have overcome them; because greater is he who is in you than he who is in the world. ⁵ They are of the world. Therefore they speak of the world, and the world hears them. ⁶ We are of God. He who knows God listens to us. He who is not of God doesn't listen to us. By this we know the spirit of truth, and the spirit of error.

Acts 16:16-35

¹⁶ As we were going to prayer, a certain girl having a spirit of divination met us, who brought her masters much gain by fortune telling. ¹⁷ Following Paul and us, she cried out, "These men are servants of the Most High God, who proclaim to us a way of salvation!" ¹⁸ She was doing this for many days.

But Paul, becoming greatly annoyed, turned and said to the spirit, "I command you in the name of Jesus Christ to come out of her!" It came out that very hour. ¹⁹ But when her masters saw that the hope of their gain was gone, they seized Paul and Silas, and dragged them into the marketplace before the rulers. ²⁰ When they had brought them to the magistrates, they said, "These men, being Jews, are agitating our city ²¹ and advocate customs which it is not lawful for us to accept or to observe, being Romans."

²²The multitude rose up together against them and the magistrates tore their clothes from them, then commanded them to be beaten with rods. ²³ When they had laid many stripes on them, they threw them into prison, charging the jailer to keep them safely, ²⁴ who, having received such a command, threw them into the inner prison, and secured their feet in the stocks.

²⁵ But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. ²⁶ Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. ²⁷ The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. ²⁸ But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

²⁹ He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, ³⁰ brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

³¹They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." ³²They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

³³ He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. ³⁴ He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

35 But when it was day, the magistrates sent the sergeants, saying, "Let those men go."

Hebrews 5:5-14

⁵So also Christ didn't glorify himself to be made a high priest, but it was he who said to him,

"You are my Son.

Today I have become your father." Psalm 2:7

⁶ As he says also in another place,

"You are a priest forever,

after the order of Melchizedek." Psalm 110:4

⁷He, in the days of his flesh, having offered up prayers and petitions with strong crying and tears to him who was able to save him from death, and having been heard for his godly fear, ⁸ though he was a Son, yet learned obedience by the things which he suffered. ⁹ Having been made perfect, he became to all of those who obey him the author of eternal salvation, ¹⁰ named by God a high priest after the order of Melchizedek.

¹¹ About him we have many words to say, and hard to interpret, seeing you have become dull of hearing. ¹² For although by this time you should be teachers, you again need to have someone teach you the rudiments of the first principles of the revelations of God. You have come to need milk, and not solid food. ¹³ For everyone who lives on milk is not experienced in the word of righteousness, for he is a baby. ¹⁴ But solid food is for those who are full grown, who by reason of use have their senses exercised to discern good and evil.

Matthew 4:1-11

Then Jesus was led up by the Spirit into the wilderness to be tempted by the devil. ² When he had fasted forty days and forty nights, he was hungry afterward. ³ The tempter came and said to him, "If you are the Son of God, command that these stones become bread."

⁴ But he answered, "It is written, 'Man shall not live by bread alone, but by every word that proceeds out of God's mouth." Deuteronomy 8:3

⁵ Then the devil took him into the holy city. He set him on the pinnacle of the temple, ⁶ and said to him, "If you are the Son of God, throw yourself down, for it is written,

'He will command his angels concerning you,' and,

'On their hands they will bear you up,

so that you don't dash your foot against a stone." Psalm 91:11-12

⁸ Again, the devil took him to an exceedingly high mountain, and showed him all the kingdoms of the world and their glory. ⁹ He said to him, "I will give you all of these things, if you will fall down and worship me."

¹⁰Then Jesus said to him, "Get behind me, Satan! For it is written, 'You shall worship the Lord your God, and you shall serve him only." <u>Deuteronomy 6:13</u>

⁷ Jesus said to him, "Again, it is written, 'You shall not test the Lord, your God." Deuteronomy 6:16

¹¹Then the devil left him, and behold, angels came and served him.

- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL NOT BELIEVE EVERY SPIRIT but TEST the spirits to see if they are from God. For many false prophets have gone out into the World. I KNOW THE SPIRIT OF GOD/RUACH ELOHIM by this every spirit that ACKNOWLEDGES that Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua has come in Human flesh is from God/Elohim, but every spirit that does not acknowledge Jesus/Yeshua is not from God/Elohim!
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM A CHILD OF GOD! I have OVERCOME the spirit of the anti-christ/anti-messiah, which is already in the World. I OVERCOME because GREATER IS JESUS CHRIST/YESHUA MESSIAH, Who is within me than he who is in the World. Those in the World speak from the World and the World listens to them. We are from God/Elohim; whoever KNOWS GOD LISTENS to us, but whoever is not from God/Elohim does not listen to us. BY THIS WE KNOW THE SPIRIT OF TRUTH and the spirit of error.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will forever be in the STATE OF PRAYER that I will be QUICK to DISCERN in both the natural and spiritual realms. It is not only what is said, but the spirit by which the words are spoken. In the Name of Jesus/Yeshua I have the power to COMMAND evil spirits to leave those who are possessed. They must LEAVE in the Mighty Name of the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare, though the World complains and persecutes, I WILL PRAISE THE LORD and SERVE HIM ONLY! In the midst of incarceration and harm, the Lord will send His Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh and Angels to DRAW ALL MEN UNTO HIMSELF!
- ➤ I decree and declare PUT YOUR TRUST IN THE LORD JESUS/ADONAI YESHUA and you will be SAVED you and your Household!
- ➤ I decree and declare Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah is my EXAMPLE! He offered up both prayers and pleas, with loud crying and tears, to the ONE ABLE TO SAVE Him from death; and He was HEARD BECAUSE OF HIS REVERENCE. Though He was a Son, HE LEARNED OBEDIENCE from what He suffered.
- ➤ I decree and declare you, who have known the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah for a while, ought to be teachers! Do not continue to drink the milk of the Word the foundation and basics but GROW INTO MATURITY eating solid food; through PRACTICE YOU WILL HAVE YOUR SENSES TRAINED to DISCERN both good and evil!
- ➤ I decree and declare it is the SPIRIT OF GOD/RUACH ELOHIM Who I follow; not just anyone who quotes Scriptures. For we see that satan challenged Jesus/Yeshua, time and time again, but his intentions were not righteous. I WILL CONTINUE TO STUDY THE SCRIPTURES so that the DISCERNMENT of the Spirit/Ruach within me is STRONGER than the challenges of the enemy.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 5, 2020]

I Am Committed — Living Fully Immersed in Christ!

Psalm 26:1-12; Romans 8:5-11; Colossians 3:1-17

Psalm 26:1-12

Judge me, Yahweh, for I have walked in my integrity. I have trusted also in Yahweh without wavering.

- ² Examine me, Yahweh, and prove me.
 - Try my heart and my mind.
- ³ For your loving kindness is before my eyes.
 - I have walked in your truth.
- ⁴I have not sat with deceitful men, neither will I go in with hypocrites.
- ⁵I hate the assembly of evildoers, and will not sit with the wicked.
- ⁶I will wash my hands in innocence, so I will go about your altar, Yahweh,
- that I may make the voice of thanksgiving to be heard and tell of all your wondrous deeds.
- ⁸ Yahweh, I love the habitation of your house, the place where your glory dwells.
- ⁹ Don't gather my soul with sinners, nor my life with bloodthirsty men;
- in whose hands is wickedness, their right hand is full of bribes.
- ¹¹ But as for me, I will walk in my integrity. Redeem me, and be merciful to me.
- ¹² My foot stands in an even place. In the congregations I will bless Yahweh.

Romans 8:5-11

⁵ For those who live according to the flesh set their minds on the things of the flesh, but those who live according to the Spirit, the things of the Spirit. ⁶ For the mind of the flesh is death, but the mind of the Spirit is life and peace; ⁷ because the mind of the flesh is hostile toward God; for it is not subject to God's law, neither indeed can it be. ⁸ Those who are in the flesh can't please God. ⁹ But you are not in the flesh but in the Spirit, if it is so that the Spirit of God dwells in you. But if any man doesn't have the Spirit of Christ, he is not his. ¹⁰ If Christ is in you, the body is dead because of sin, but the spirit is alive because of righteousness. ¹¹ But if the Spirit of him who raised up Jesus from the dead dwells in you, he who raised up Christ Jesus from the dead will also give life to your mortal bodies through his Spirit who dwells in you.

Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

⁵ Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. ⁶ For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; ⁸ but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. ⁹ Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, ¹⁰ and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, ¹¹ where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

¹² Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; ¹³ bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

¹⁴ Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. ¹⁵ And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. ¹⁶ Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

¹⁷ Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai VINDICATES me, for I have lived a blameless life; unwaveringly trusting in Him. Through the Sacrifice of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, I am cleansed as white as snow. It is by His work that I am RECEIVED by the Father/Abba. I PRAISE His Holy Name!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai EXAMINES my heart, tests me, and searches my mind and heart. My Life is before Him as an open book. His GRACE is before my Eyes, and I LIVE my Life by His TRUTH!
- ➤ I decree and declare Lord/Adonai, I WASH my hands in innocence and walk around Your Altar, lifting my voice in THANKS and PROCLAIMING Your Wonders! I Love the House where You Live, the place where Your GLORY ABIDES. I strive to live a blameless life, with Holy Spirit leading and guiding me. My feet are PLANTED on LEVEL GROUND, in the Assemblies I BLESS the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare I set my mind on the things of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. As my mind is CONTROLLED by the Spirit/Ruach there is LIFE and PEACE/SHALOM! Those who are controlled by their old nature cannot submit themselves to God's/Elohim's Law!
- ➤ I decree and declare you who IDENTIFY with the Spirit/Ruach have the Him LIVING inside you. Your body is dead because of sin, but alive because the Spirit/Ruach gives you LIFE because God/Elohim considers you RIGHTEOUS!

- ➤ I decree and declare that you who were raised with Christ/Messiah SEEK THE THINGS ABOVE where Christ/Messiah is sitting at the Right Hand of God/Elohim. You FOCUS your minds on the THINGS ABOVE, not on the things here on Earth. For you have DIED, and your Life is HIDDEN with Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim. When Christ/Messiah, Who is your Life, appears, then you too will appear with Him in GLORY!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Earthly parts of your nature are PUT TO DEATH; for it is because of these things that God's/Elohim's ANGER is coming on those who DISOBEY Him. You, who used to practice these things have PUT THEM ALL AWAY anger, exasperation, meanness, slander and obscene talk. You PUT ON THE NEW SELF, which is continually RENEWED in fuller KNOWLEDGE, closer and closer to the IMAGE of its Creator!
- ➤ I decree and declare the New Self allows no room for discriminating between Gentiles and Jew, circumcised and uncircumcised, foreigner, savage, slave, free man; on the contrary, in all, Christ/Messiah is EVERYTHING!
- ➤ I decree and declare as God's/Elohim's Chosen People, HOLY and DEARLY LOVED, clothe yourselves with COMPASSION and KINDNESS, HUMILITY, GENTLENESS and PATIENCE. Bear with one another and FORGIVE, if anyone has a complaint against someone else. Just as the Lord/Adonai has forgiven you, so you must FORGIVE.
- ➤ I decree and declare above all else, CLOTHE YOURSELVES WITH LOVE, which binds Everything together PERFECTLY; and let the PEACE/SHALOM which comes from Christ/Messiah be your heart's DECISION MAKER, for this is why you were called to be part of a single Body.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are THANKFUL! You let the Word of Christ/Messiah, in all its richness, LIVE in you, as you TEACH and COUNSEL each other in all WISDOM, and as you sing psalms, hymns and spiritual songs with GRATITUDE to God in your hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 17, 2019]

Pray Without Ceasing

The Lord God Almighty Hears You!

1 John 5:13-15; John 15:7-17; 1 Peter 3:8-17; 2 Chronicles 7:12-16; Psalm 145:8-21 (WEB)

1 John 5:13-15

¹³ These things I have written to you who believe in the name of the Son of God, that you may know that you have eternal life, and that you may continue to believe in the name of the Son of God.

¹⁴ This is the boldness which we have toward him, that if we ask anything according to his will, he listens to us. ¹⁵ And if we know that he listens to us, whatever we ask, we know that we have the petitions which we have asked of him.

John 15:7-17

⁷ If you remain in me, and my words remain in you, you will ask whatever you desire, and it will be done for you.

⁸ "In this my Father is glorified, that you bear much fruit; and so you will be my disciples. ⁹ Even as the Father has loved me, I also have loved you. Remain in my love. ¹⁰ If you keep my commandments, you will remain in my love; even as I have kept my Father's commandments, and remain in his love. ¹¹ I have spoken these things to you, that my joy may remain in you, and that your joy may be made full.

¹² "This is my commandment, that you love one another, even as I have loved you. ¹³ Greater love has no one than this, that someone lay down his life for his friends. ¹⁴ You are my friends, if you do whatever I command you. ¹⁵ No longer do I call you servants, for the servant doesn't know what his lord does. But I have called you friends, for everything that I heard from my Father, I have made known to you. ¹⁶ You didn't choose me, but I chose you and appointed you, that you should go and bear fruit, and that your fruit should remain; that whatever you will ask of the Father in my name, he may give it to you.

¹⁷ "I command these things to you, that you may love one another.

1 Peter 3:8-17

⁸ Finally, all of you be like-minded, compassionate, loving as brothers, tenderhearted, courteous, ⁹ not rendering evil for evil, or insult for insult; but instead blessing, knowing that you were called to this, that you may inherit a blessing. ¹⁰ For, "He who would love life and see good days, let him keep his tongue from evil and his lips from speaking deceit. ¹¹ Let him turn away from evil and do good. Let him seek peace and pursue it. ¹² For the eyes of the Lord are on the righteous, and his ears open to their prayer; but the face of the Lord is against those who do evil." [Psalm 34:12-16]

¹³ Now who will harm you if you become imitators of that which is good? ¹⁴ But even if you should suffer for righteousness' sake, you are blessed. "Don't fear what they fear, neither be troubled." [Isaiah 8:12] ¹⁵ But sanctify the Lord God in your hearts. Always be ready to give an answer to everyone who asks you a reason concerning the hope that is in you, with humility and fear, ¹⁶ having a good conscience. Thus, while you are spoken against as evildoers, they may be disappointed who curse your good way of life in Christ. ¹⁷ For it is better, if it is God's will, that you suffer for doing well than for doing evil.

2 Chronicles 7:12-16

¹² Yahweh appeared to Solomon by night, and said to him, "I have heard your prayer, and have chosen this place for myself for a house of sacrifice.

¹³ "If I shut up the sky so that there is no rain, or if I command the locust to devour the land, or if I send pestilence among my people; ¹⁴ if my people, who are called by my name, will humble themselves, pray, seek my face, and turn from their wicked ways, then I will hear from heaven, will forgive their sin, and will heal their land. ¹⁵ Now my eyes will be open and my ears attentive to prayer that is made in this place. ¹⁶ For now I have chosen and made this house holy, that my name may be there forever; and my eyes and my heart will be there perpetually.

Psalm 145:8-21

⁸ Yahweh is gracious, merciful, slow to anger, and of great loving kindness. ⁹ Yahweh is good to all. His tender mercies are over all his works. ¹⁰ All your works will give thanks to you, Yahweh. Your saints will extol you. ¹¹ They will speak of the glory of your kingdom, and talk about your power, ¹² to make known to the sons of men his mighty acts, the glory of the majesty of his kingdom. ¹³ Your kingdom is an everlasting kingdom. Your dominion endures throughout all generations. Yahweh is faithful in all his words, and loving in all his deeds. ¹⁴ Yahweh upholds all who fall, and raises up all those who are bowed down. ¹⁵ The eyes of all wait for you. You give them their food in due season. ¹⁶ You open your hand, and satisfy the desire of every living thing. ¹⁷ Yahweh is righteous in all his ways, and gracious in all his works. ¹⁸ Yahweh is near to all those who call on him, to all who call on him in truth. ¹⁹ He will fulfill the desire of those who fear him. He also will hear their cry, and will save them. ²⁰ Yahweh preserves all those who love him, but he will destroy all the wicked. ²¹ My mouth will speak the praise of Yahweh. Let all flesh bless his holy name forever and ever.

- ➤ I decree and declare YOU WHO BELIEVE in the Name of the Son of God/Ben-Elohim have ETERNAL LIFE! Now this is the CONFIDENCE we have before Him that if we ASK anything ACCORDING TO HIS WILL, HE HEARS US! And if we know that He hears us whatever we ask we know we have the requests we have asked from Him!
- ➤ I decree and declare I ABIDE in Christ/Messiah and His WORDS abide in me, so that WHATEVER I WISH will be done for me. The Father is GLORIFIED as I BEAR much Fruit and in doing so prove to be Jesus'/Yeshua's Disciple/Talmid.
- ➤ I decree and declare Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah LOVES me as the Father has LOVED Him. As I KEEP HIS COMMANDMENTS I will ABIDE in His LOVE! Jesus/Yeshua shared His LOVE and TRUTH that His JOY will be in me, and my JOY will be full!
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM A FRIEND OF CHRIST'S/MESSIAH'S, BECAUSE EVERYTHING He hears from the Father He makes known to me. I did not choose Him, but HE SELECTED ME that I would go and produce Fruit, and my Fruit will remain.
- I decree and declare to all who BELONG to the Father, He will give you WHATEVER you ask in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will be HARMONIOUS, SYMPATHETIC, brotherly, tenderhearted, HUMBLE-MINDED. I will not repay evil for evil or insult for insult but will give a BLESSING instead it is for this reason I WAS CALLED, so that I might inherit a blessing.
- ➤ I decree and declare the one who LOVES LIFE, wanting to see good days, MUST KEEP HIS TONGUE from evil and his LIPS from speaking deceit. He MUST TURN AWAY FROM EVIL and DO GOOD! HE MUST SEEK PEACE/SHALOM and pursue it!
- ➤ I decree and declare the EYES of the Lord/Adonai ARE ON THE RIGHTEOUS and His EARS OPEN TO THEIR PRAYER. Who will harm you if you are EAGER TO DO GOOD. But even if you should suffer for what is right, YOU ARE BLESSED! You will not be afraid or worry about their threats. Instead you will SANCTIFY Christ/Messiah as Lord/Adonai in your Hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am always READY TO GIVE AN ANSWER to anyone who asks me the REASON for the Hope that is in me, yet with HUMILITY and REVERENCE keeping a clear conscience so that whatever I am accused of, those who abuse me for my good conduct in Christ/Messiah may be put to shame.
- ➤ I decree and declare the WORDS OF THE LORD GOD/ADONAI ELOHIM, "When My People, over whom My Name is called, HUMBLE themselves and PRAY and SEEK My Face and TURN from their evil ways, then I WILL HEAR FROM HEAVEN and will forgive their sin and WILL HEAL THEIR LAND! Now MY EYES WILL BE OPEN and MY EARS ATTENTIVE TO THE PRAYER OFFERED!"
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is GRACIOUS and COMPASSIONATE, slow to anger and great in lovingkindness. The LORD/ADONAI IS GOOD TO ALL! He has compassion on all creatures. All Your Works PRAISE You, Lord/Adonai, and Your Saints/Kedoshim BLESS You! We declare the GLORY of Your Kingdom and speak of Your Might!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is NEAR to all who CALL on Him, to all who call on Him in TRUTH! He will fulfill the desire of those who FEAR Him. He will Hear their cry and save them!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, December 24, 2019]

Prayer Positions You to Hear God!

Matthew 6:5-15; Acts 10:1-35; Psalms 6:8-10; 32:1-11; 1 Thessalonians 5:16-18

Matthew 6:5-15

⁵ "When you pray, you shall not be as the hypocrites, for they love to stand and pray in the synagogues and in the corners of the streets, that they may be seen by men. Most certainly, I tell you, they have received their reward. ⁶ But you, when you pray, enter into your inner room, and having shut your door, pray to your Father who is in secret; and your Father who sees in secret will reward you openly. ⁷ In praying, don't use vain repetitions as the Gentiles do; for they think that they will be heard for their much speaking. ⁸ Therefore don't be like them, for your Father knows what things you need before you ask him. ⁹ Pray like this:

"'Our Father in heaven, may your name be kept holy.

Let your will be done on earth as it is in heaven.

as we also forgive our debtors.

13 Bring us not into temptation,

but deliver us from the evil one.

For yours is the Kingdom, the power, and the glory forever. Amen.'

¹⁴ "For if you forgive men their trespasses, your heavenly Father will also forgive you. ¹⁵ But if you don't forgive men their trespasses, neither will your Father forgive your trespasses.

Acts 10:1-35

Now there was a certain man in Caesarea, Cornelius by name, a centurion of what was called the Italian Regiment, ² a devout man, and one who feared God with all his house, who gave gifts for the needy generously to the people, and always prayed to God. ³ At about the ninth hour of the day, he clearly saw in a vision an angel of God coming to him, and saying to him, "Cornelius!"

He said to him, "Your prayers and your gifts to the needy have gone up for a memorial before God. ⁵ Now send men to Joppa, and get Simon, who is also called Peter. ⁶ He is staying with a tanner named Simon, whose house is by the seaside.

¹⁰ Let your Kingdom come.

¹¹ Give us today our daily bread.

¹² Forgive us our debts,

⁴He, fastening his eyes on him, and being frightened, said, "What is it, Lord?"

⁷ When the angel who spoke to him had departed, Cornelius called two of his household servants and a devout soldier of those who waited on him continually. ⁸ Having explained everything to them, he sent them to Joppa. ⁹ Now on the next day as they were on their journey, and got close to the city, Peter went up on the housetop to pray at about noon. ¹⁰ He became hungry and desired to eat, but while they were preparing, he fell into a trance. ¹¹ He saw heaven opened and a certain container descending to him, like a great sheet let down by four corners on the earth, ¹² in which were all kinds of four-footed animals of the earth, wild animals, reptiles, and birds of the sky. ¹³ A voice came to him, "Rise, Peter, kill and eat!"

¹⁴ But Peter said, "Not so, Lord; for I have never eaten anything that is common or unclean."

¹⁵ A voice came to him again the second time, "What God has cleansed, you must not call unclean." ¹⁶ This was done three times, and immediately the vessel was received up into heaven. ¹⁷ Now while Peter was very perplexed in himself what the vision which he had seen might mean, behold, the men who were sent by Cornelius, having made inquiry for Simon's house, stood before the gate, ¹⁸ and called and asked whether Simon, who was also called Peter, was lodging there. ¹⁹ While Peter was pondering the vision, the Spirit said to him, "Behold, three^[c] men seek you. ²⁰ But arise, get down, and go with them, doubting nothing; for I have sent them."

²² They said, "Cornelius, a centurion, a righteous man and one who fears God, and well spoken of by all the nation of the Jews, was directed by a holy angel to invite you to his house, and to listen to what you say." ²³ So he called them in and provided a place to stay. On the next day Peter arose and went out with them, and some of the brothers from Joppa accompanied him. ²⁴ On the next day they entered into Caesarea. Cornelius was waiting for them, having called together his relatives and his near friends. ²⁵ When Peter entered, Cornelius met him, fell down at his feet, and worshiped him. ²⁶ But Peter raised him up, saying, "Stand up! I myself am also a man." ²⁷ As he talked with him, he went in and found many gathered together. ²⁸ He said to them, "You yourselves know how it is an unlawful thing for a man who is a Jew to join himself or come to one of another nation, but God has shown me that I shouldn't call any man unholy or unclean. ²⁹ Therefore I also came without complaint when I was sent for. I ask therefore, why did you send for me?"

³⁰ Cornelius said, "Four days ago, I was fasting until this hour, and at the ninth hour, [d] I prayed in my house, and behold, a man stood before me in bright clothing, ³¹ and said, 'Cornelius, your prayer is heard, and your gifts to the needy are remembered in the sight of God. ³² Send therefore to Joppa and summon Simon, who is also called Peter. He is staying in the house of a tanner named Simon, by the seaside. When he comes, he will speak to you.' ³³ Therefore I sent to you at once, and it was good of you to come. Now therefore we are all here present in the sight of God to hear all things that have been commanded you by God."

³⁴ Peter opened his mouth and said, "Truly I perceive that God doesn't show favoritism; ³⁵ but in every nation he who fears him and works righteousness is acceptable to him.

Psalm 6:8-10

⁸ Depart from me, all you workers of iniquity, for Yahweh has heard the voice of my weeping.

⁹ Yahweh has heard my supplication.

Yahweh accepts my prayer.

¹⁰ May all my enemies be ashamed and dismayed.

They shall turn back, they shall be disgraced suddenly.

Psalm 32:1-11

Blessed is he whose disobedience is forgiven,

whose sin is covered.

² Blessed is the man to whom Yahweh doesn't impute iniquity, in whose spirit there is no deceit.

³ When I kept silence, my bones wasted away through my groaning all day long.

²¹ Peter went down to the men, and said, "Behold, I am he whom you seek. Why have you come?"

⁴ For day and night your hand was heavy on me.

My strength was sapped in the heat of summer. Selah.

I didn't hide my iniquity.

I said, I will confess my transgressions to Yahweh,

and you forgave the iniquity of my sin. Selah.

⁶ For this, let everyone who is godly pray to you in a time when you may be found.

Surely when the great waters overflow, they shall not reach to him.

⁷You are my hiding place.

You will preserve me from trouble.

You will surround me with songs of deliverance. Selah.

⁸I will instruct you and teach you in the way which you shall go.

I will counsel you with my eye on you.

⁹ Don't be like the horse, or like the mule, which have no understanding, who are controlled by bit and bridle, or else they will not come near to you.

¹⁰ Many sorrows come to the wicked,

but loving kindness shall surround him who trusts in Yahweh.

¹¹Be glad in Yahweh, and rejoice, you righteous! Shout for joy, all you who are upright in heart!

1 Thessalonians 5:16-18

⁶ Always rejoice. ¹⁷ Pray without ceasing. ¹⁸ In everything give thanks, for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus toward you.

- I decree and declare I do not pray as the hypocrites, to be seen by others, but I go into my room and close the door to PRAY to my Father in SECRET! My Father, Who SEES in SECRET, will REWARD me!
- ➤ I decree and declare God KNOWS what we need before we ask Him. It is not the many words that gets His attention, but rather the RECOGNITION of His SOVEREIGNTY, our HUMILITY and REPENTANCE that touches His Heart. He UNDERSTANDS; express your THANKS for what He has ALREADY PROVIDED!
- ➤ I decree and declare ALIGNMENT with God: devotion, God-fearing, and generosity, POSITIONS you to HEAR from Him. This may be through the Scriptures, Visions and Dreams. For your PRAYERS and acts of CHARITY go into God's PRESENCE as a sweet-smelling incense, so that HE HAS YOU ON HIS MIND!
- ➤ I decree and declare God's timing is PERFECT. He knows your needs and the needs of others. He knows those with HEARTS to RESPOND to His CALL. By His Spirit, He will bring it to pass! When hearts are pliable and close to Him, He can easily SET STRAIGHT the misunderstanding of His Word, His TRUTH!
- I decree and declare I will GO wherever the Lord directs, without prejudice, for God has shown me not to call any Person common or unclean. He has sent His Word into the World, that

⁵I acknowledged my sin to you.

whosoever BELIEVES in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua shall have EVERLASTING LIFE! (John 3:16) God does not play favorites, but whoever fears Him and does what is RIGHT is acceptable to Him, no matter what People he belongs to.

- ➤ I decree and declare that ALL WORKERS OF EVIL MUST FLEE! For the Lord has heard me and He ACCEPTS my PRAYER. All my enemies will be CONFOUNDED, completely TERRIFIED; they will turn back and be SUDDENLY PUT TO SHAME! In Jesus'/Yeshua's Name Amen!!!
- ➤ I decree and declare God has FORGIVEN our offenses; we are CLEANSED as WHITE as SNOW. (Isaiah 1:18) We are BLESSED because the Lord/Adonai imputes no guilt to us, there is no deceit in our hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare to ALL WHO HEAR: acknowledge your sin to the Lord; stop concealing your guilt. Confess your offenses to the Lord/Adonai; then HE WILL FORGIVE the guilt of your sin. This is what Everyone FAITHFUL should PRAY at a time when the Lord/Adonai can be found!
- ➤ I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai is a HIDING PLACE for me, He KEEPS me from distress; He SURROUNDS me with Songs of Deliverance. He says, "I will INSTRUCT and TEACH you in the Way YOU ARE TO GO; I will give you counsel; My Eyes will be WATCHING OVER you!"
- I decree and declare I am ALWAYS JOYFUL, PRAYING CONTINUOUSLY! In Everything I give THANKS, for this is what God wants from each of us who are UNITED with Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, April 8, 2019]

Pray During the Night Watch!

Psalm 91:1-16; Acts 16:25-34; Luke 11:1-13

Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

- ²I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."
- ³ For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.
- ⁴He will cover you with his feathers. Under his wings you will take refuge. His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.
- ⁵ You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,
- on of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.
- ⁷ A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.
- ⁸ You will only look with your eyes, and see the recompense of the wicked.
- ⁹ Because you have made Yahweh your refuge, and the Most High your dwelling place,
- ¹⁰ no evil shall happen to you,

neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.

- ¹¹ For he will put his angels in charge of you, to guard you in all your ways.
- ¹²They will bear you up in their hands, so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.
- ¹³ You will tread on the lion and cobra.

You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.

- ¹⁴ "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him.
 - I will set him on high, because he has known my name.
- ¹⁵ He will call on me, and I will answer him.
 - I will be with him in trouble.
 - I will deliver him, and honor him.
- ¹⁶ I will satisfy him with long life, and show him my salvation."

Acts 16:25-34

²⁵ But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. ²⁶ Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. ²⁷ The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill

himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. ²⁸ But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

²⁹ He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, ³⁰ brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

³¹They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." ³²They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

³³He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. ³⁴He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

Luke 11:1-13

When he finished praying in a certain place, one of his disciples said to him, "Lord, teach us to pray, just as John also taught his disciples."

²He said to them, "When you pray, say,

'Our Father in heaven,

may your name be kept holy.

May your Kingdom come.

May your will be done on earth, as it is in heaven.

for we ourselves also forgive everyone who is indebted to us.

Bring us not into temptation,

but deliver us from the evil one."

⁵ He said to them, "Which of you, if you go to a friend at midnight, and tell him, 'Friend, lend me three loaves of bread, ⁶ for a friend of mine has come to me from a journey, and I have nothing to set before him,' ⁷ and he from within will answer and say, 'Don't bother me. The door is now shut, and my children are with me in bed. I can't get up and give it to you'? ⁸I tell you, although he will not rise and give it to him because he is his friend, yet because of his persistence, he will get up and give him as many as he needs.

⁹ "I tell you, keep asking, and it will be given you. Keep seeking, and you will find. Keep knocking, and it will be opened to you. ¹⁰ For everyone who asks receives. He who seeks finds. To him who knocks it will be opened.

¹¹ "Which of you fathers, if your son asks for bread, will give him a stone? Or if he asks for a fish, he won't give him a snake instead of a fish, will he? ¹² Or if he asks for an egg, he won't give him a scorpion, will he? ¹³ If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit to those who ask him?"

³ Give us day by day our daily bread.

⁴ Forgive us our sins,

- ➤ I decree and declare you are the STRONG and BOLD Warriors of the Most High/'Elyon who live in His Shelter; you SPEND YOUR NIGHTS in PRAYER in the Shadow of the Almighty/Shaddai! You call unto the Lord/Adonai, "My REFUGE! My FORTRESS! My GOD/ELOHAI in Whom I TRUST!
- ➤ I decree and declare, DURING the NIGHT WATCH, the Lord/Adonai RESCUES you from the trap of the hunter and from the plague of calamities; HE COVERS YOU with His pinions, and under His WINGS you will find REFUGE; His TRUTH is a Shield and PROTECTION!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord is PROTECTING you, and those you lift in PRAYER, during the Night Watch. You will not fear the terrors of Night or the arrow that flies by day, or the plague that roams in the dark, or the scourge that wreaks havoc at noon!
- ➤ I decree and declare you have made the Lord/Adonai, the Most High/'Elyon your DWELLING PLACE. No disaster will happen to you, no calamity will come near your tent; for He has ordered His Angels to CARE for you and GUARD you wherever you are, ALWAYS. They carry you in their hands, so that you won't stumble.
- ➤ I decree and declare, during your PRAYER TIMES and during your daytime walk, you will TREAD DOWN lions and snakes, young lions and serpents: all forms of demonic powers you will TRAMPLE them UNDERFOOT! The Lord/Adonai RESCUES you because you LOVE Him and you KNOW His Name!
- ➤ I decree and declare FREEDOM and RELEASE are coming in the Midnight Hour! The Lord is ANOINTING and EMPOWERING His Word and His People to break the STRONGHOLDS in families, regions and Nations, in the Night.
- ➤ I decree and declare the PRAYERS spoken in the Night will RESULT in the SALVATION of Multitudes! Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is ministering and drawing Households, Families and Nations to the Lord!
- ➤ I decree and declare you PRAY always, keeping the Name of the Father God/Abba Elohim HOLY. Your SIGHT is on His Kingdom coming to Earth; your WORDS are BREAKING THROUGH the Atmosphere to bring it to pass.
- ➤ I decree and declare I come before the Father/Abba in REPENTANCE and walk in FORGIVENESS towards all who have wronged me. God/Elohim will not lead me into temptation or hard testing. I am able to RISE above all CHALLENGES and DIFFICULTIES for He is with me and His Angels encircle me; He is my STRONG TOWER!
- I decree and declare to you: KEEP ASKING, and it will be given to you; KEEP SEEKING, and you will FIND; KEEP KNOCKING, and the DOOR will be opened to you. For Everyone who goes on asking RECEIVES; and he who goes on seeking FINDS; and to him who continues knocking, the DOOR will be OPENED! The Father/Abba will keep giving Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh from Heaven to those who keep asking Him!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 15, 2019]

We Bind the Principalities Over Our Regions!

Ephesians 6:10-13; Daniel 10:7-21; Jeremiah 29:7-14; 1 Timothy 2:1-6; Psalm 75:1-10 (WEB)

Ephesians 6:10-13

¹⁰ Finally, be strong in the Lord, and in the strength of his might. ¹¹ Put on the whole armor of God, that you may be able to stand against the wiles of the devil. ¹² For our wrestling is not against flesh and blood, but against the principalities, against the powers, against the world's rulers of the darkness of this age, and against the spiritual forces of wickedness in the heavenly places. ¹³ Therefore put on the whole armor of God, that you may be able to withstand in the evil day, and having done all, to stand.

Daniel 10:7-21

⁷ I, Daniel, alone saw the vision; for the men who were with me didn't see the vision; but a great quaking fell on them, and they fled to hide themselves. ⁸ So I was left alone, and saw this great vision. No strength remained in me; for my face grew deathly pale, and I retained no strength. ⁹ Yet I heard the voice of his words. When I heard the voice of his words, then I fell into a deep sleep on my face, with my face toward the ground.

¹⁰ Behold, a hand touched me, which set me on my knees and on the palms of my hands. ¹¹ He said to me, "Daniel, you greatly beloved man, understand the words that I speak to you, and stand upright; for I have been sent to you, now." When he had spoken this word to me, I stood trembling.

¹²Then he said to me, "Don't be afraid, Daniel; for from the first day that you set your heart to understand, and to humble yourself before your God, your words were heard. I have come for your words' sake. ¹³ But the prince of the kingdom of Persia withstood me twenty-one days; but, behold, Michael, one of the chief princes, came to help me because I remained there with the kings of Persia. ¹⁴ Now I have come to make you understand what will happen to your people in the latter days; for the vision is yet for many days."

¹⁵ When he had spoken these words to me, I set my face toward the ground, and was mute. ¹⁶ Behold, one in the likeness of the sons of men touched my lips. Then I opened my mouth, and spoke and said to him who stood before me, "My lord, by reason of the vision my sorrows have overtaken me, and I retain no strength. ¹⁷ For how can the servant of this my lord talk with this my lord? For as for me, immediately there remained no strength in me. There was no breath left in me."

¹⁸Then one like the appearance of a man touched me again, and he strengthened me. ¹⁹He said, "Greatly beloved man, don't be afraid. Peace be to you. Be strong. Yes, be strong."

When he spoke to me, I was strengthened, and said, "Let my lord speak; for you have strengthened me."

²⁰ Then he said, "Do you know why I have come to you? Now I will return to fight with the prince of Persia. When I go out, behold, the prince of Greece will come. ²¹ But I will tell you that which is inscribed in the writing of truth. There is no one who holds with me against these, but Michael your prince.

Jeremiah 29:7-14

⁷ Seek the peace of the city where I have caused you to be carried away captive, and pray to Yahweh for

it; for in its peace you will have peace." ⁸ For Yahweh of Armies, the God of Israel says: "Don't let your prophets who are among you and your diviners deceive you. Don't listen to your dreams which you cause to be dreamed. ⁹ For they prophesy falsely to you in my name. I have not sent them," says Yahweh. ¹⁰ For Yahweh says, "After seventy years are accomplished for Babylon, I will visit you and perform my good word toward you, in causing you to return to this place. ¹¹ For I know the thoughts that I think toward you," says Yahweh, "thoughts of peace, and not of evil, to give you hope and a future. ¹² You shall call on me, and you shall go and pray to me, and I will listen to you. ¹³ You shall seek me, and find me, when you search for me with all your heart. ¹⁴ I will be found by you," says Yahweh, "and I will turn again your captivity, and I will gather you from all the nations, and from all the places where I have driven you, says Yahweh. I will bring you again to the place from where I caused you to be carried away captive."

1 Timothy 2:1-6

¹I exhort therefore, first of all, that petitions, prayers, intercessions, and givings of thanks be made for all men: ² for kings and all who are in high places, that we may lead a tranquil and quiet life in all godliness and reverence. ³ For this is good and acceptable in the sight of God our Savior, ⁴ who desires all people to be saved and come to full knowledge of the truth. ⁵ For there is one God, and one mediator between God and men, the man Christ Jesus, ⁶ who gave himself as a ransom for all, the testimony in its own times,

Psalm 75:1-10

¹We give thanks to you, God. We give thanks, for your Name is near. Men tell about your wondrous works.

² When I choose the appointed time, I will judge blamelessly. ³ The earth and all its inhabitants quake. I firmly hold its pillars. *Selah*.

⁴I said to the arrogant, "Don't boast!" I said to the wicked, "Don't lift up the horn. ⁵ Don't lift up your horn on high. Don't speak with a stiff neck." ⁶ For neither from the east, nor from the west, nor yet from the south, comes exaltation. ⁷ But God is the judge. He puts down one, and lifts up another. ⁸ For in Yahweh's hand there is a cup, full of foaming wine mixed with spices. He pours it out. Indeed the wicked of the earth drink and drink it to its very dregs.

⁹ But I will declare this forever: I will sing praises to the God of Jacob. ¹⁰ I will cut off all the horns of the wicked, but the horns of the righteous shall be lifted up.

- ➤ I decree and declare I AM STRONG in the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah and in HIS MIGHTY POWER! I have put on the FULL ARMOR of God/Elohim, so that I AM ABLE to stand against the schemes of the devil. For our struggle is not against flesh and blood, but against the rulers, against the powers, against the worldly forces of this darkness, and against the spiritual forces of wickedness in the heavenly places.
- ➤ I decree and declare I have PUT ON the FULL ARMOR of God/Elohim, so that I AM ABLE TO RESIST these evil times; and after I have done everything, I STAND FIRM IN CHRIST JESUS/MESSIAH YESHUA!

- ➤ I decree and declare I PRAY and INTERCEDE for my REGION, NATION and those Nations the Lord has given me. In the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah, and by HIS AUTHORITY, I BREAK every Stronghold and BIND every Principality that have kept these Territories restricted and powerless. I REPENT for the evils done within these regions. I REPENT pent for the People who are unaware, I REPENT for the weak and the sinner. May their eyes be opened and the SHACKLES removed in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim HEARS the words of the Humble. He has dispatched His Angels in RESPONSE to your prayers and supplications. Do not give up HOPE; PERSIST in covering your Regions in PRAYER through the Holy Spirit. The battles are raging in the Heavens. God's/Elohim's Angelic Army is FIGHTING on your behalf!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is sending His Angels to STRENGTHEN and ENCOURAGE you: "Highly VALUED ONE, DO NOT FEAR! Peace/Shalom to you. BE STRONG, NOW! YES, BE STRONG/CHAZAK! Know that, by your words and DECLARATIONS, the Angelic Hosts are released and EMPOWERED because it is the WORD of the Most High God/El'Elyon!
- ➤ I decree and declare I SEEK PEACE/SHALOM for the Cities where I live and work, also for my State and Country. I SPEAK TO THE ATMOSPHERE that GODLY VALUES will PREVAIL in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name! I will not listen to the false prophets who do not acknowledge the sin within our Nation. I recognize and CALL OUT those who are walking in the ways of darkness, YOU ARE BEING EXPOSED, in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name. I call out to those who are uncertain you don't know which way to turn: SEE THE LIGHT OF JESUS CHRIST/YESHUA THE MESSIAH! Turn to the TRUTH of God's Word!
- ➤ I decree and declare and THANK the Lord/Adonai, for YOU HAVE PLANS for us, PLANS FOR PEACE/SHALOM and not calamity to give us a FUTURE and a HOPE! For we are CALLING on You, Lord/Adonai! You have PROMISED to come and HEAR us! We have sought You and we have found You, as we have sought for You with all our Heart.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am making my REQUESTS, PRAYERS, INTERCESSIONS, and THANKSGIVING on behalf of ALL PEOPLE for Kings and all who are in AUTHORITY so that we may LIVE a PEACEFUL and quiet life in all GODLINESS and respectfulness. This is good and pleasing in the sight of God/Elohim our Savior.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim DESIRES ALL MEN to be SAVED and come into the KNOWLEDGE of the TRUTH. For there is ONE GOD and there is ONE MEDIATOR between God/Elohim and men the man Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, Who GAVE HIMSELF as a RANSOM FOR ALL the TESTIMONY at the proper time.
- ➤ I decree and declare it is the LORD GOD ALMIGHTY/ADONAI EL SHADDAI Who JUDGES the wicked. No more boasting! Do not lift your horn up high. Do not speak with outstretched neck. FOR GOD/ELOHIM IS THE JUDGE. He lowers one and lifts up another
- ➤ I decree and declare FOREVER I WILL SING PRAISE to the God of Jacob/Ya'akov! The Lord God/Adonai Elohim will cut off all the horns of the wicked, but the horns of the RIGHTEOUS will be LIFTED UP!

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 20, 2019]

You are Bold

Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40; Proverbs 28:1-10; 2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17; 11:10-14, 21-33; 13:1-10 (WEB)

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40

²⁰ So Ahab sent to all the children of Israel, and gathered the prophets together to Mount Carmel.

The people didn't say a word.

²²Then Elijah said to the people, "I, even I only, am left as a prophet of Yahweh; but Baal's prophets are four hundred fifty men. ²³Let them therefore give us two bulls; and let them choose one bull for themselves, and cut it in pieces, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under; and I will dress the other bull, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under it. ²⁴You call on the name of your god, and I will call on Yahweh's name. The God who answers by fire, let him be God."

All the people answered, "What you say is good."

²⁵ Elijah said to the prophets of Baal, "Choose one bull for yourselves, and dress it first; for you are many; and call on the name of your god, but put no fire under it."

²⁶They took the bull which was given them, and they dressed it, and called on the name of Baal from morning even until noon, saying, "Baal, hear us!" But there was no voice, and nobody answered. They leaped about the altar which was made.

Proverbs 28:1-10

¹The wicked flee when no one pursues; but the righteous are as bold as a lion. ²In rebellion, a land has many rulers, but order is maintained by a man of understanding and knowledge. ³A needy man who oppresses the poor is like a driving rain which leaves no crops. ⁴Those who forsake the law praise the wicked; but those who keep the law contend with them. ⁵ Evil men don't understand justice; but those who seek Yahweh understand it fully. ⁶ Better is the poor who walks in his integrity, than he who is perverse in his ways, and he is rich. ⁵ Whoever keeps the law is a wise son; but he who is a companion of gluttons shames his father. ⁶ He who increases his wealth by excessive interest gathers it for one who has pity on the poor. ⁶ He who turns away his ear from hearing the law, even his prayer is an abomination. ¹⁰ Whoever causes the upright to go astray in an evil way, he will fall into his own trap; but the blameless will inherit good.

2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17

¹Now I Paul, myself, entreat you by the humility and gentleness of Christ, I who in your presence am lowly among you, but being absent am bold toward you. ²Yes, I beg you that I may not, when present, show courage with the confidence with which I intend to be bold against some, who consider us to be walking according to the flesh. ³For though we walk in the flesh, we don't wage war according to the flesh; ⁴ for the weapons of our warfare are not of the flesh, but mighty before God to the throwing down of strongholds, ⁵ throwing down imaginations and every high thing that is exalted against the knowledge of God and bringing every thought into captivity to the obedience of Christ, ⁶ and being in readiness to avenge all disobedience when your obedience is made full....

²¹ Elijah came near to all the people, and said, "How long will you waver between the two sides? If Yahweh is God, follow him; but if Baal, then follow him."

¹⁷ But "he who boasts, let him boast in the Lord." [Jeremiah 9:24]

2 Corinthians 11:10-14, 21-33

¹⁰ As the truth of Christ is in me, no one will stop me from this boasting in the regions of Achaia. ¹¹ Why? Because I don't love you? God knows. ¹² But what I do, that I will do, that I may cut off occasion from those who desire an occasion, that in which they boast, they may be found even as we. ¹³ For such men are false apostles, deceitful workers, masquerading as Christ's apostles. ¹⁴ And no wonder, for even Satan masquerades as an angel of light....

²¹ I speak by way of disparagement, as though we had been weak. Yet in whatever way anyone is bold (I speak in foolishness), I am bold also. ²² Are they Hebrews? So am I. Are they Israelites? So am I. Are they the offspring of Abraham? So am I. ²³ Are they servants of Christ? (I speak as one beside himself.) I am more so: in labors more abundantly, in prisons more abundantly, in stripes above measure, and in deaths often. ²⁴ Five times I received forty stripes minus one from the Jews. ²⁵ Three times I was beaten with rods. Once I was stoned. Three times I suffered shipwreck. I have been a night and a day in the deep. ²⁶ I have been in travels often, perils of rivers, perils of robbers, perils from my countrymen, perils from the Gentiles, perils in the city, perils in the wilderness, perils in the sea, perils among false brothers; ²⁷ in labor and travail, in watchings often, in hunger and thirst, in fastings often, and in cold and nakedness.

²⁸ Besides those things that are outside, there is that which presses on me daily: anxiety for all the assemblies. ²⁹ Who is weak, and I am not weak? Who is caused to stumble, and I don't burn with indignation? ³⁰ If I must boast, I will boast of the things that concern my weakness. ³¹ The God and Father of the Lord Jesus Christ, he who is blessed forever more, knows that I don't lie. ³² In Damascus the governor under King Aretas guarded the Damascenes' city, desiring to arrest me. ³³ I was let down in a basket through a window by the wall, and escaped his hands.

2 Corinthians 13:1-10

¹This is the third time I am coming to you. "At the mouth of two or three witnesses shall every word be established." [Deuteronomy 19:15] ²I have said beforehand, and I do say beforehand, as when I was present the second time, so now, being absent, I write to those who have sinned before now, and to all the rest, that, if I come again, I will not spare; ³ seeing that you seek a proof of Christ who speaks in me; who toward you is not weak, but is powerful in you. ⁴ For he was crucified through weakness, yet he lives through the power of God. For we also are weak in him, but we will live with him through the power of God toward you. ⁵ Examine your own selves, whether you are in the faith. Test your own selves. Or don't you know about your own selves, that Jesus Christ is in you?—unless indeed you are disqualified. ⁶ But I hope that you will know that we aren't disqualified.

⁷ Now I pray to God that you do no evil; not that we may appear approved, but that you may do that which is honorable, though we are as reprobate. ⁸ For we can do nothing against the truth, but for the truth. ⁹ For we rejoice when we are weak and you are strong. We also pray for this: your becoming perfect. ¹⁰ For this cause I write these things while absent, that I may not deal sharply when present, according to the authority which the Lord gave me for building up, and not for tearing down.

- ➤ I decree and declare IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Ahab; and IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Mount Carmel and called the Children of Israel and the Prophets of Baal. As Elijah MOVED in OBEDIENCE he was filled with BOLDNESS to carry out the Lord's/Adonai's Command. As you move in OBEDIENCE, the Lord/Adonai FILLS YOU WITH HIS HOLY BOLDNESS!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as the Lord/Adonai LEADS, YOU WILL CHALLENGE the spirits of darkness working in your midst. Because you have stepped out in FAITH and BOLDNESS, in the places near you, the Lord/Adonai is SENDING YOU TO THE NATIONS, to places many will avoid because of FEAR. But YOU DO NOT FEAR; YOU MOVE FORWARD IN FAITH, as the Lord DIRECTS. You say in your Heart, "Here I am Lord, SEND ME!" (Isaiah 6:8)
- I decree and declare you will WALK in BOLDNESS that the VOICE of God/Elohim will be heard on the Earth and the People will KNOW HE, THE LORD/ADONAI, IS GOD/ELOHIM!
- ➤ I decree and declare the RIGHTEOUS of the Lord/Adonai are as BOLD as a Lion! A Country that has a Man of DISCERNMENT and KNOWLEDGE in leadership MAINTAINS ORDER! We PRAISE You Lord God/Adonai Elohim for leading this Nation.
- ➤ I decree and declare you who KNOW and OBEY the Scriptures STIR UP the wicked in the Land. You do not praise them but bring them to accountability. Evil men do not understand Justice, but those who SEEK the Lord/Adonai UNDERSTAND IT FULLY!
- ➤ I decree and declare BETTER is the Poor who walks in INTEGRITY than the Rich whose ways are crooked. He who KEEPS God's Word is a discerning Child!
- ➤ I decree and declare those who increase their WEALTH by exorbitant interest, GATHERS IT FOR ONE KINDER to the Poor! The Blameless will INHERIT GOOD! We praise the Lord/Adonai and CALL into our accounts the WEALTH of the wicked that it may be used for the Work of the Kingdom as the Lord/Adonai directs.
- ➤ I decree and declare, though we walk in the flesh, WE DO NOT WAGE WAR ACCORDING TO THE FLESH. For the weapons of our warfare are not fleshly but POWERFUL through God/Elohim for the TEARING DOWN OF SPIRITUAL STRONGHOLDS. We are tearing down false arguments and every high-minded thing that exalts itself against the knowledge of God/Elohim. We are taking every thought captive to the OBEDIENCE of Christ/Messiah. It is not the one who commends himself who is approved, but the ONE WHOM THE LORD COMMENDS!
- ➤ I decree and declare to the Servants of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah: YOU WILL NOT KEEP SILENT! You continue to speak forth the TRUTH of God's Word that you may cut off the opportunity from those who want an opportunity to boast in what they call the truth but is a lie. For they are false apostles, deceitful workers masquerading as Christ's/Messiah's apostles. And no wonder, for even satan masquerades as an angel of light. It is no great thing therefore if his servants also masquerade as servants of righteousness. Their end will be according to their deeds.
- ➤ I decree and declare that there will be TRIALS and PERSECUTIONS as you fulfill the CALL of God on your life and for this generation. If you must boast, boast in your weakness and in the

STRENGTH of the Lord/Adonai. It is by His LOVE, PEACE and STRENGTH that you continue the race until the end.

- ➤ I decree and declare that Christ/Messiah is speaking through me. He is not weak toward you, but POWERFUL among you. For He was crucified in weakness, yet HE LIVES through the POWER of God/Elohim For, we also are weak in Him, yet we shall LIVE with Him by God's/Elohim's POWER toward you! TEST YOURSELVES, to see whether you are in the Faith. EXAMINE YOURSELVES!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 18, 2019]

You Will Not be Dissuaded by Others' Unbelief!

Luke 24:8-18, 25-32; Ephesians 2:17-22; Romans 5:1-5; James 1:2-8

Luke 24:8-18, 25-32

⁸ They remembered his words, ⁹ returned from the tomb, and told all these things to the eleven and to all the rest. ¹⁰ Now they were Mary Magdalene, Joanna, and Mary the mother of James. The other women with them told these things to the apostles. ¹¹ These words seemed to them to be nonsense, and they didn't believe them. ¹² But Peter got up and ran to the tomb. Stooping and looking in, he saw the strips of linen lying by themselves, and he departed to his home, wondering what had happened. ¹³ Behold, two of them were going that very day to a village named Emmaus, which was sixty stadia ^[a] from Jerusalem. ¹⁴ They talked with each other about all of these things which had happened. ¹⁵ While they talked and questioned together, Jesus himself came near, and went with them. ¹⁶ But their eyes were kept from recognizing him. ¹⁷ He said to them, "What are you talking about as you walk, and are sad?"

¹⁸One of them, named Cleopas, answered him, "Are you the only stranger in Jerusalem who doesn't know the things which have happened there in these days?"...

²⁵ He said to them, "Foolish men, and slow of heart to believe in all that the prophets have spoken! ²⁶ Didn't the Christ have to suffer these things and to enter into his glory?" ²⁷ Beginning from Moses and from all the prophets, he explained to them in all the Scriptures the things concerning himself. ²⁸ They came near to the village where they were going, and he acted like he would go further. ²⁹ They urged him, saying, "Stay with us, for it is almost evening, and the day is almost over." He went in to stay with them. ³⁰ When he had sat down at the table with them, he took the bread and gave thanks. Breaking it, he gave it to them. ³¹ Their eyes were opened and they recognized him, then he vanished out of their sight. ³² They said to one another, "Weren't our hearts burning within us, while he spoke to us along the way, and while he opened the Scriptures to us?"

Ephesians 2:17-22

¹⁷He came and preached peace to you who were far off and to those who were near. ¹⁸For through him we both have our access in one Spirit to the Father. ¹⁹So then you are no longer strangers and foreigners, but you are fellow citizens with the saints and of the household of God, ²⁰ being built on the foundation of the apostles and prophets, Christ Jesus himself being the chief cornerstone; ²¹ in whom the whole building, fitted together, grows into a holy temple in the Lord; ²² in whom you also are built together for a habitation of God in the Spirit.

Romans 5:1-5

Being therefore justified by faith, we have peace with God through our Lord Jesus Christ; ² through whom we also have our access by faith into this grace in which we stand. We rejoice in hope of the glory of God. ³ Not only this, but we also rejoice in our sufferings, knowing that suffering produces perseverance; ⁴ and perseverance, proven character; and proven character, hope: ⁵ and hope doesn't disappoint us, because God's love has been poured into our hearts through the Holy Spirit who was given to us.

James 1:2-8

² Count it all joy, my brothers, ^a when you fall into various temptations, ³ knowing that the testing of

your faith produces endurance. ⁴ Let endurance have its perfect work, that you may be perfect and complete, lacking in nothing.

⁵ But if any of you lacks wisdom, let him ask of God, who gives to all liberally and without reproach, and it will be given to him. ⁶ But let him ask in faith, without any doubting, for he who doubts is like a wave of the sea, driven by the wind and tossed. ⁷ For that man shouldn't think that he will receive anything from the Lord. ⁸ He is a double-minded man, unstable in all his ways.

- ➤ I decree and declare you RECEIVE from the Lord/Adonai and BELIEVE, EMBRACING His revelations to you. You REMEMBER His Promises and His Word which will not return to Him void. He is FAITHFUL and JUST to perform it!
- ➤ I decree and declare you will PERSEVERE even when others do not see or understand. Even among the Believers, the Church, there are those who doubt. They do not have the DEPTH of UNDERSTANDING and their eyes have been blinded. PERSEVERE and pray for them, but CONTINUE ON GOD'S/ELOHIM'S PATH, HIS DESTINY FOR YOU!
- ➤ I decree and declare you have STUDIED the Words of the Prophets and you TRUST them as written in the Scriptures. You TRUST in the Lord/Adonai knowing that He is the SAME Yesterday, Today and Forever! His Words are TRUE and they will come to pass!
- ➤ I decree and declare many will SHIFT their SIGHT from their own loss to the Lord/Adonai and, in doing so, will have their EYES OPENED to the Miracles in their midst. The Lord's/Adonai's desire is to BLESS you where you are and to FILL you with His Spirit for the Work His has placed before you!
- I decree and declare the Good News, His PEACE/SHALOM to you who far off and to those who are nearby, NEWS that THROUGH Him we both have ACCESS in one Spirit to the Father!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are no longer foreigners and strangers. Rather, you are FELLOW CITIZENS with God's/Elohim's People and Members of His Family. You have been built on the foundation of the Emissaries and the Prophets, with the Cornerstone being Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah Himself! In UNION with Him the whole building is HELD TOGETHER, and it is growing into a HOLY TEMPLE in UNION with the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare we are CONSIDERED RIGHTEOUS by God because of our TRUST! Therefore, let us continue to have PEACE/SHALOM with God/Elohim through our Lord, Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah. Also, through Him and on the ground of our TRUST, we have GAINED ACCESS to this GRACE in which we stand; so, let us BOAST about the HOPE of experiencing God's/Elohim's GLORY.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are LEARNING to regard it all as JOY when you FACE VARIOUS KINDS of TEMPTATIONS, for you know that the TESTING of your TRUST produces PERSEVERANCE. But let PERSEVERANCE do its complete work, so that you may be COMPLETE and WHOLE lacking in nothing!

- ➤ I decree and declare if any of you lacks WISDOM, ASK God/Elohim, Who GIVES TO ALL GENEROUSLY and without reproach; and it will be GIVEN to him. But ASK IN TRUST, doubting nothing, for the doubter is like a wave in the sea being tossed and driven by the wind.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 2, 2019]

By Acts of Courage Your Faith is Seen!

James 2:14-26; Luke 5: 4-11, 27-32; Matthew 4:18-25; Romans 4:13-25

James 2:14-26

¹⁴ What good is it, my brothers, if a man says he has faith, but has no works? Can faith save him? ¹⁵ And if a brother or sister is naked and in lack of daily food, ¹⁶ and one of you tells them, "Go in peace. Be warmed and filled;" yet you didn't give them the things the body needs, what good is it? ¹⁷ Even so faith, if it has no works, is dead in itself. ¹⁸ Yes, a man will say, "You have faith, and I have works." Show me your faith without works, and I will show you my faith by my works.

¹⁹ You believe that God is one. You do well. The demons also believe, and shudder. ²⁰ But do you want to know, vain man, that faith apart from works is dead? ²¹ Wasn't Abraham our father justified by works, in that he offered up Isaac his son on the altar? ²² You see that faith worked with his works, and by works faith was perfected. ²³ So the Scripture was fulfilled which says, "Abraham believed God, and it was accounted to him as righteousness," <u>Genesis 15:6</u> and he was called the friend of God. ²⁴ You see then that by works, a man is justified, and not only by faith. ²⁵ In the same way, wasn't Rahab the prostitute also justified by works, in that she received the messengers and sent them out another way? ²⁶ For as the body apart from the spirit is dead, even so faith apart from works is dead.

Luke 5:4-11, 27-32

⁴ When he had finished speaking, he said to Simon, "Put out into the deep, and let down your nets for a catch."

⁵ Simon answered him, "Master, we worked all night, and took nothing; but at your word I will let down the net." ⁶ When they had done this, they caught a great multitude of fish, and their net was breaking. ⁷ They beckoned to their partners in the other boat, that they should come and help them. They came, and filled both boats, so that they began to sink. ⁸ But Simon Peter, when he saw it, fell down at Jesus' knees, saying, "Depart from me, for I am a sinful man, Lord." ⁹ For he was amazed, and all who were with him, at the catch of fish which they had caught; ¹⁰ and so also were James and John, sons of Zebedee, who were partners with Simon.

Jesus said to Simon, "Don't be afraid. From now on you will be catching people alive."

¹¹When they had brought their boats to land, they left everything, and followed him....

²⁷ After these things he went out, and saw a tax collector named Levi sitting at the tax office, and said to him, "Follow me!"

²⁸ He left everything, and rose up and followed him. ²⁹ Levi made a great feast for him in his house. There was a great crowd of tax collectors and others who were reclining with them. ³⁰ Their scribes and the Pharisees murmured against his disciples, saying, "Why do you eat and drink with the tax collectors and sinners?" ³¹ Jesus answered them, "Those who are healthy have no need for a physician, but those who are sick do. ³² I have not come to call the righteous, but sinners to repentance."

Matthew 4:18-25

¹⁸ Walking by the sea of Galilee, he^[a] saw two brothers: Simon, who is called Peter, and Andrew, his

brother, casting a net into the sea; for they were fishermen. ¹⁹ He said to them, "Come after me, and I will make you fishers for men."

²⁰They immediately left their nets and followed him. ²¹Going on from there, he saw two other brothers, James the son of Zebedee, and John his brother, in the boat with Zebedee their father, mending their nets. He called them. ²²They immediately left the boat and their father, and followed him.

²³ Jesus went about in all Galilee, teaching in their synagogues, preaching the Good News of the Kingdom, and healing every disease and every sickness among the people. ²⁴ The report about him went out into all Syria. They brought to him all who were sick, afflicted with various diseases and torments, possessed with demons, epileptics, and paralytics; and he healed them. ²⁵ Great multitudes from Galilee, Decapolis, Jerusalem, Judea, and from beyond the Jordan followed him.

Romans 4:13-25

¹³ For the promise to Abraham and to his offspring that he should be heir of the world wasn't through the law, but through the righteousness of faith. ¹⁴ For if those who are of the law are heirs, faith is made void, and the promise is made of no effect. ¹⁵ For the law produces wrath, for where there is no law, neither is there disobedience. ¹⁶ For this cause it is of faith, that it may be according to grace, to the end that the promise may be sure to all the offspring, not to that only which is of the law, but to that also which is of the faith of Abraham, who is the father of us all. ¹⁷ As it is written, "I have made you a father of many nations." Genesis 17:5 This is in the presence of him whom he believed: God, who gives life to the dead, and calls the things that are not, as though they were. ¹⁸ Besides hope, Abraham in hope believed, to the end that he might become a father of many nations, according to that which had been spoken, "So will your offspring be." Genesis 15:5 19 Without being weakened in faith, he didn't consider his own body, already having been worn out, (he being about a hundred years old), and the deadness of Sarah's womb. 20 Yet, looking to the promise of God, he didn't waver through unbelief, but grew strong through faith, giving glory to God, ²¹ and being fully assured that what he had promised, he was also able to perform. ²² Therefore it also was "credited to him for righteousness." Genesis 15:6 ²³ Now it was not written that it was accounted to him for his sake alone, ²⁴ but for our sake also, to whom it will be accounted, who believe in him who raised Jesus, our Lord, from the dead, ²⁵ who was delivered up for our trespasses, and was raised for our justification.

- ➤ I decree and declare it is by my ACTIONS that FAITH is brought to Life! For we know that if someone says he has faith, but does not have works, his faith is dead by itself. Rahab was proved RIGHTEOUS by WORKS when she welcomed the messengers and sent them out another way. For just as the body without the spirit is dead, so also FAITH WITHOUT WORKS IS DEAD.
- I decree and declare Father Abraham/Avraham was PROVED RIGHTEOUS by works when he offered up Isaac/Yitz'chak his son on the altar. His faith WORKED TOGETHER with his works, and by the works his FAITH WAS MADE COMPLETE! As he BELIEVED God/Elohim, it was credited to him as RIGHTEOUSNESS and he was called God's/Elohim's FRIEND. We see that a man is PROVED RIGHTEOUS by works and not by faith alone.

- ➤ I decree and declare when you FOLLOW the LORD'S/ADONAI'S LEADING there is a SURE REWARD! You will not allow your current experience to block your FAITH, but rather you will DECLARE: "But at Your Word, Lord/Adonai, I will do what You've instructed me." Your REWARD WILL BE GREAT as you STEP OUT in OBEDIENCE!
- ➤ I decree and declare as you STEP INTO YOUR MIRACLES you will call to and attract others; they will SEE YOUR ABUNDANCE and they will be BLESSED also! AMAZEMENT will grip all who are with you, over the magnitude of the miracles. DO NOT BE FEARFUL for you will be CATCHING MEN rather than your daily labor. You will FOLLOW JESUS/YESHUA and leave your daily tools and work behind.
- ➤ I decree and declare although, to those in the market place and congregations, you may not appear to be the "type" to have a call on your life, the LORD DOES NOT LOOK UPON YOU WITH THE EYES OF THE WORLD, BUT RATHER WITH THE EYES OF GOD, KNOWING YOUR CHARACTER and HEART. He SEES your beginning and your end. He is calling you, "FOLLOW ME!"
- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL NOT ALLOW the judgments of the World to dissuade me from FOLLOWING JESUS/YESHUA! There will always be those who feel the need to put me down. I WILL NOT PAY ATTENTION to them. I WILL KEEP MY EYES on the Lord/Adonai and DO WHAT PLEASES HIM!
- I decree and declare I will FOLLOW when the Lord/Adonai CALLS me; I will GO where He LEADS me. I will IMMEDIATELY leave what I am doing and FOLLOW HIM!
- ➤ I decree and declare, because Christ/Messiah LIVES IN ME, I will TEACH with the WISDOM of God/Elohim, PROCLAIMING the Good News of the Kingdom, and HEALING every kind of Disease and Sickness among the People. Because of His Working in our midst, News of God's Miracles will SPREAD throughout the region.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am RIGHTEOUS through my TRUST in God's/Elohim's PROMISE TRUST in the SAVING GRACE made available through the death and RESURRECTION of His Son, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! The PROMISE according to GRACE is GUARANTEED to all Abraham's/Avraham's offspring not only to those of the Law/Torah but also to those of his FAITH. He is the Father of us all.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will TRUST in HOPE BEYOND HOPE in the PROMISES the Lord/Adonai has given to me. For with God/Elohim, NOTHING IS IMPOSSIBLE. I will not waver in unbelief concerning the Promise of God, Rather I AM STRENGTHENED IN FAITH, giving GLORY to Him! I am FULLY CONVINCED that what God/Elohim has PROMISED, He also is ABLE TO DO!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, September 4, 2019]